
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Meeting 

of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

of the 
SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

A Public Agency 
Tuesday, August 23, 2016 

8:30 AM 
Santa Barbara MTD Auditorium 

550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Dave Davis, Chair; Chuck McQuary, Vice Chair; Olivia Rodriguez, Director; Dick Weinberg, Director; 
Bill Shelor, Secretary; David Tabor, Director; Roger Aceves, Director 

 
3. REPORT REGARDING POSTING OF AGENDA 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES - (ATTACHMENT-ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

The Board will be asked to waive the reading of and approve the draft minutes for the meeting of  
August 9, 2016. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF CASH REPORT - (ATTACHMENTS-ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
The Board will be asked to review and approve the cash report for the period of August 2, 2016 
through August 15, 2016. 
 

THIS CONCLUDES THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board on items within jurisdiction of the Board that are not 
scheduled for public hearing.  The time allotted per speaker will be at the discretion of the Board 
Chair.  If you wish to address the Board under this item number, please complete and deliver to the 
MTD Board Clerk, a “Request to Speak” form including a description of the subject you wish to 
address.  Additional public comment will be allowed during each agenda item, including closed 
session items.  Please fill out the Request to Speak form and indicate the agenda item number that 
you wish to comment on. 

 
7. JANITORIAL SERVICES IFB CONTRACT AWARD RECOMMENDATION - (ATTACHMENTS-

ACTION MAY BE TAKEN)  
Staff will present a contract award recommendation for janitorial services. 

 
8. VEHICLE FLEET - FUEL AND PROPULSION SYSTEMS - (INFORMATIONAL) 

Board will receive a presentation on the vehicle fleet - fuel and propulsion system considerations for future 
replacements. 

 
9. AUTHORIZATION TO LEASE 6 BYD 30’ ELECTRIC VEHICLES - (ATTACHMENTS-ACTION MAY 

BE TAKEN) 
Staff recommends that the Board Authorize the General Manager to enter into an agreement with 
BYD Motors to lease six thirty-foot battery-electric “shuttle configuration” buses. 



 
10. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT UPDATE – (INFORMATIONAL) 

a) Annual CHP Audit 
b) August Service Changes 
c) Linden Ave/Casitas Pass Projects 
d) New Bus Shelter – De La Guerra & Laguna 
 

11. COMMUNICATIONS 
 a) SBCAG Correspondence - Linden Ave/Casitas Pass Project Traffic Management Program Funds 
 
12. OTHER BUSINESS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

The Board will report on other related public transit issues and committee meetings 
 
RELATED TO EACH CLOSED SESSION; PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE ALLOWED RELATED TO THE 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) BEFORE THE RECESS 
 
13. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GOVERNMENT 

CODE §54957.6) - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
Agency designated representative:  Mr. Jerry Estrada, General Manager. 
Employee organization: International Brotherhood of Teamsters Union, Local 186. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the MTD Administrative Office at 963-3364 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to allow 
time for MTD to attempt a reasonable accommodation. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
Meeting 

of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

of the 
SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

A Public Agency 
Tuesday, August 9, 2016 

8:30 AM 
Santa Barbara MTD Auditorium 

550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Davis called the meeting to order at 8:33 a.m. 
 

2. ROLL CALL OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Chair Davis reported that all members were present with the exception of Director Tabor. 

 
3. REPORT REGARDING POSTING OF AGENDA 

Lilly Gomez, Interim Executive Assistant, reported that the agenda was posted on Friday,  
August 5th, 2016 at MTD’s Administrative office, mailed and emailed to those on the agenda list, and 
posted on MTD’s website.  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES - (ATTACHMENT-ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

The Board will be asked to waive the reading of and approve the draft minutes for the meeting of  
July 26, 2016. Director Weinberg advised adjournment dedication should have been addressed to 
Michael Weinberg. Director Aceves moved to approve the draft minutes with modification. Director 
McQuary seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF CASH REPORT - (ATTACHMENTS-ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
The Board will be asked to review and approve the cash report for the period of July 19, 2016 through 
August 1, 2016. Director Aceves moved to approve the cash report. Director McQuary seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

THIS CONCLUDES THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None was made. 
 
7. CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE -(INFORMATIONAL) 

General Manager, Jerry Estrada provided the Board with an update on the status of MTD’s Bus 
replacements and acquisitions. 
 
Assistant General Manager, Brad Davis presented an update on MTD’s capital projects including the 
transit center renovations, Olive terminal canopy modifications, Olive terminal fencing, the annual 
structural upgrades, Smart Card System, bus stop shelters, and a review on the status and 
capabilities of the new AIM/AVL System.  
 
Mr. Davis explained the various capabilities of the new AIM system including but not limited to the 
video cameras, vehicle health monitoring, accident reporting, and on time reporting.  

 



Director Rodriguez suggested the Board takes a visit to the Transit center to review the status of the 
building. The Board and General Manager agreed it would be beneficial.  
 
Mr. Estrada and Mr. Davis both made a special acknowledgement of Safety and Training Officer, 
Manny Castanon stating he played a large role as the liaison/project manager working tirelessly to 
fine tune the bus stop announcements, quality testing, and training staff. Mr. Castanon as well as 
many others has been of tremendous help in getting the new system running smoothly as well. 
 
The Board thanked all staff for the update and hard work put into MTD’s enhancements.  

 
AT THIS POINT CHAIR DAVIS MADE A MOTION TO MOVE # 11 (CLOSED SESSION) OUT OF ORDER. 
DIRECTOR RODRIGUEZ SECONDED THE MOTION. THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
RELATED TO EACH CLOSED SESSION; PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE ALLOWED RELATED TO THE 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) BEFORE THE RECESS 
 
 
11. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GOVERNMENT 

CODE §54957.6) - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
Agency designated representative:  Mr. Jerry Estrada, General Manager. 
Employee organization: International Brotherhood of Teamsters Union, Local 186. 

  
Upon returning from closed session Chair Davis reported that no action was taken. 
 

AT 10:04 A.M. DIRECTOR MCQUARY LEFT MEETING  
 
8. FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES UPDATE-(INFORMATIONAL) 

Manager of Government Relations and Compliance, Steve Maas provided that Board with an update 
regarding various transit funding opportunities expected to be available over the coming months. 
Funding opportunities from the California Cap and-Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF), Low 
Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP), Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP), 
and the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC).Mr. Maas advised the Board of 
the funding opportunities from the FTA Section 5307 Operating, Measure A Operating & Capital, and 
Transportation Development Act (LTF & STA) are not formulated to continue. 
 
Director Aceves requested an External Affairs meeting.  
 

9. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT UPDATE – (INFORMATIONAL) 
General Manager, Jerry Estrada shared that the Montecito Community Foundation reached out and 
encouraged MTD to work closely with the foundation and to apply for a grant to provide beautification 
of the bus stops. Manager of Government Relations and Compliance, Steve Maas met with the 
Montecito Community Foundation to discuss potential bus stop replacements. MTD plans to continue 
to work closely as all the information and guidance provided was very well received.  
 
MTD is continuing to work with our existing electric fleets but also wanted to commend Mr. David 
Harbour and Superintendent of Maintenance Mike Cardona for taking the lead with BYD, visiting the 
Lancaster facilities and finalizing the specs for the new electric fleet from BYD. Mr. Estrada also 
suggested that members of the board take a visit to the Lancaster to view the facilities. 

 
10. OTHER BUSINESS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

No other items were discussed. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

Director Rodriguez moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:36 a.m. Director Weinberg seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District

Board Meeting of August 23, 2016
Cash Report

For the Period 8/2/2016 through 8/15/2016

$12,652,661.40
MONEY MARKET

Beginning Balance 8/2/2016

Passenger Fares 146,149.18
Accounts Receivable 45,879.05
Miscellaneous/Asset Sales 2,826.93
Advertising/Prepaid Deposi 1,304.00

196,159.16Total Deposits

(1,211.52)ACH Garn/Escrow 
(30,556.16)ACH Pensions Transfer

(141,294.20)ACH Tax Deposit
(309,070.68)Payroll Transfer

(1,702,580.12)Operations Transfer
(2,184,712.68)Total Disbursements

$10,664,107.88Total Cash and Investments as of 8/15/2016:

CASH INVESTMENTS 

WC / Liability Reserves ($3,947,944.76)

Ending Balance

10,664,107.88

Working Capital                                                      

LAIF Account $3,354,562.39

Total Cash Balance $14,018,670.27

Money Market Account

$10,070,725.51

SELF INSURED LIABILITY ACCOUNTS

16-Aug-16Cash Report Cover Sheet 15:30



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 
Accounts Payable

Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  112996 7/14/2016 CUMMINS PACIFIC, LLC               BUS PARTS                                                   0.00 V
  113138 7/28/2016 PREVOST CAR INC.- CREDIT DEPT. BUS PARTS                                                   0.00 V
  113171 8/5/2016 AQUA-FLO                           BUS WASH SUPPLIES                                 105.30  
  113172 8/5/2016 MARY DEAILE                        PAYROLL RELATED                                   106.15  
  113173 8/5/2016 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DE PR GARNISHMENTS                                   449.42  
  113174 8/5/2016 STATE OF CALIFORNIA/FTB            PAYROLL RELATED                                   424.28  
  113175 8/5/2016 STATE OF CALIFORNIA                PAYROLL RELATED                                   344.58  
  113176 8/5/2016 ANN HARBOUR                        PAYROLL RELATED                                   275.00  
  113177 8/5/2016 INTELLICORP RECORD INC.            PRE-EMPLOYMENT CHECK                      471.84  
  113178 8/5/2016 IZURIETA FENCE COMPANY, INC.  OLIVE FENCE PROJECT                             60,310.37  
  113179 8/5/2016 MURPHY ELECTRIC MAINTENANC ELECTRICAL REPAIRS/INSTALLATION 1,672.33  
  113180 8/5/2016 ANN BRADY OTTIERI                  PAYROLL RELATED                                   277.00  
  113181 8/5/2016 SB COUNTY FEDERAL CREDIT UNI PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              960.00  
  113182 8/5/2016 SANTA BARBARA SHERIFF'S DEPT PAYROLL RELATED                                   485.86  
  113183 8/5/2016 SO. CAL. EDISON CO.                UTILITIES                                                      3,614.48  
  113184 8/5/2016 SB CITY OF-REFUSE/WATER            UTILITIES                                                      3,020.60  
  113185 8/5/2016 TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 18 UNION DUES                                                478.85  
  113186 8/12/2016 ROGER ACEVES                       DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  
  113187 8/12/2016 ASBURY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVI WASTE OIL RECYCLER                             120.00  
  113188 8/12/2016 JOSE BAUTISTA                      AD MOUNTING/DISMOUNTING               432.00  
  113189 8/12/2016 BNS ELECTRONICS, INC.              SANTA YNEZ SITE RENTAL                      271.76  
  113190 8/12/2016 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC SUPPLY, I SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  5.52  
  113191 8/12/2016 CALSTART, INC.                     MEMBERSHIP                                               2,500.00  
  113192 8/12/2016 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS                BUS PARTS & SUPPLIES                            151.96  
  113193 8/12/2016 CITY OF CARPINTERIA                ELECTRIC CHARGING STATION             2,357.41  
  113194 8/12/2016 CENTRAL COAST CIRCULATION, L BUS BOOK DISTRIBUTION                       575.00  
  113195 8/12/2016 COAST, Coalition for Sustainable   SPONSORSHIP                                              500.00  
  113196 8/12/2016 CLEVER DEVICES LTD                 AIM CONTRACT INSTALLMENT             1,123,578.84  
  113197 8/12/2016 COMMUNITY RADIO, INC.              GIB. SITE RENTAL                                       244.25  
  113198 8/12/2016 CINTAS CORPORATION                 FIRST AID SUPPLIES                                   50.28  
  113199 8/12/2016 COAST TRUCK PARTS                  BUS PARTS                                                   114.91  
  113200 8/12/2016 COX COMMUNICATIONS, CORP.     INTERNET & CABLE TV                             344.38  
  113201 8/12/2016 CUMMINS PACIFIC, LLC               BUS PARTS                                                   5,077.52  
  113202 8/12/2016 DAVID DAVIS JR.                    DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  
  113203 8/12/2016 DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA    DENTAL INSURANCE                                 10,822.20  
  113204 8/12/2016 DELTA DENTAL INSURANCE COM DENTAL INSURANCE                                 2,119.15  
  113205 8/12/2016 DOWNTOWN ORGANIZATION, INC. TC MAINTENANCE                                     450.00  
  113206 8/12/2016 ELECTRONIC DATA MAGNETICS, I BUS PASSES                                                  2,451.06  

10:4117-Aug-16Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  113207 8/12/2016 ERGOMETRICS, INC.                  DRIVER TEST SCORING                             50.00  
  113208 8/12/2016 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC.           TELEPHONES                                               94.98  
  113209 8/12/2016 FTI SERVICES, INC.                 IT SUPPORT SERVICES                              4,950.00  
  113210 8/12/2016 GEM EQUIPMENT CO.    DBA           BUS PARTS & SUPPLIES                            62.94  
  113211 8/12/2016 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   1,845.03  
  113212 8/12/2016 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   2,426.44  
  113213 8/12/2016 GRAINGER, INC.                     SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  97.63  
  113214 8/12/2016 GUARDIAN-APPLETON (DENTAL I DENTAL INSURANCE                                 4,498.62  
  113215 8/12/2016 GUARDIAN-APPLETON (LIFE INS)   LIFE INSURANCE                                        622.13  
  113216 8/12/2016 H.G. MAKELIM CO., INC.             BUS PARTS                                                   3,662.44  
  113217 8/12/2016 RAUL HERNANDEZ                     DMV/VTT REIMBURSEMENT                   53.00  
  113218 8/12/2016 HOME IMPROVEMENT CTR.             SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  211.93  
  113219 8/12/2016 HR AUTOGLASS    DBA                BUS PARTS/REPAIRS                                  210.00  
  113220 8/12/2016 KIMBALL MIDWEST                    SHOP SUPPLIES                                           288.30  
  113221 8/12/2016 LARA'S AUTO REPAIR    DBA          BUS REPAIRS                                               45.00  
  113222 8/12/2016 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC                SHOP SUPPLIES                                           480.95  
  113223 8/12/2016 ERIC MAAS                          REIMBURSEMENT                                      123.15  
  113224 8/12/2016 MANSFIELD OIL CO.- GAINESVILL BUS FUEL                                                      63,057.67  
  113225 8/12/2016 MARBORG INDUSTRIES (INC)          UTILITIES & RENTAL FEES                       465.67  
  113226 8/12/2016 MC CORMIX CORP. (OIL)              LUBRICANTS                                                4,552.46  
  113227 8/12/2016 MC CORMIX CORP. (GAS)              FUEL-SERVICE VEHICLES                         3,147.12  
  113228 8/12/2016 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO.       SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  68.36  
  113229 8/12/2016 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES, INC.         VISION INSURANCE                                   356.24  
  113230 8/12/2016 CHUCK MCQUARY                      DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  
  113231 8/12/2016 MIKE CUEVAS GARDENING SERVI LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICE 695.00  
  113232 8/12/2016 KENNETH B. MILLS                   PROCUREMENT SERVICES                       6,479.00  
  113233 8/12/2016 MISSION LINEN SUPPLY, INC          UNIFORM & LINEN SERVICE                    4,449.41  
  113234 8/12/2016 MISSION ROOFING             DBA    SHOP ROOF REPAIRS INSPECTION & R 1,275.00  
  113235 8/12/2016 MOHAWK MFG. AND SUPPLY CO.   BUS PARTS                                                   208.42  
  113236 8/12/2016 MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER             SHOP & OFFICE SUPPLIES                         1,154.75  
  113237 8/12/2016 NATIONAL INTERSTATE INS INC.   LIABILITY INSURANCE                             27,423.00  
  113238 8/12/2016 NEWARK ELECTRONICS, CORP.      BUS PARTS                                                   163.06  
  113239 8/12/2016 NU-COOL REDI GREEN, INC            COOLANTS & SHOP SUPPLIES                 575.10  
  113240 8/12/2016 PREVOST CAR INC.- CREDIT DEPT. BUS PARTS                                                   997.65  
  113241 8/12/2016 N/S CORPORATION                    BUS WASHER PARTS                                  440.54  
  113242 8/12/2016 OFFICETEAM                         TEMPORARY STAFF                                   3,152.36  
  113243 8/12/2016 PEI-GENESIS INC.                   BUS PARTS                                                   232.49  
  113244 8/12/2016 PB-RESERVE ACCOUNT                 PREPAID POSTAGE                                     1,500.00  
  113245 8/12/2016 POWERSTRIDE BATTERY CO.          EV BATTERIES                                             889.15  
  113246 8/12/2016 ROGERS, SHEFFIELD & CAMPBELL LEGAL COUNSEL                                        11,798.86  
  113247 8/12/2016 OLIVIA RODRIGUEZ                   DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  

10:4117-Aug-16Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  113248 8/12/2016 SANSUM CLINIC                      MEDICAL EXAMS                                        893.14  
  113249 8/12/2016 SAFEGUARD         DBA              OFFICE SUPPLIES                                        235.63  
  113250 8/12/2016 SB LOCKSMITHS, INC.                B&G REPAIR & SUPPLIES                          6.47  
  113251 8/12/2016 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MGMENT MEDICAL HEALTH INSURANCE              49,173.18  
  113252 8/12/2016 THAIS SAYAT                        TRAVEL PER DIEM                                     255.64  
  113253 8/12/2016 SBPRINTER.COM                      BOOSTER BOOK PRINTING                      136.08  
  113254 8/12/2016 WILLIAM JOHN SHELOR                DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  
  113255 8/12/2016 SM TIRE, CORP.                     BUS TIRE MOUNTING                                654.40  
  113256 8/12/2016 SMARDAN-HATCHER CO., INC         B&G REPAIRS & SUPPLIES                        13.37  
  113257 8/12/2016 SO. CAL. EDISON CO.                UTILITIES                                                      2,092.91  
  113258 8/12/2016 SOAP MAN DISTRIBUTIN   DBA       CLEANING SUPPLIES                                 53.46  
  113259 8/12/2016 SPECIALTY TOOL & BOLT, LTD       SHOP SUPPLIES                                           14.26  
  113260 8/12/2016 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERC OFFICE SUPPLIES                                        525.64  
  113261 8/12/2016 STEWART'S DE-ROOTING & PLUM PLUMBING REPAIRS                                  250.00  
  113262 8/12/2016 TDS SERVICE CORP.  DBA  TRANSI BUS PARTS REPAIRS                                  792.00  
  113263 8/12/2016 THE MEDCENTER                      MEDICAL EXAMS                                        1,559.00  
  113264 8/12/2016 DAVID T. TABOR                     DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  
  113265 8/12/2016 TANK TEAM INC.                     TANK TESTS                                                 123.00  
  113266 8/12/2016 TEAMSTERS MISC SECURITY TRU UNION MEDICAL INSURANCE                 169,318.00  
  113267 8/12/2016 TEAMSTERS PENSION TRUST          UNION PENSION                                          88,761.70  
  113268 8/12/2016 J.C. M. AND ASSOCIATES INC.        UNIFORMS                                                    672.38  
  113269 8/12/2016 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.      BUS PARTS                                                   5,306.88  
  113270 8/12/2016 VERIZON WIRELESS                   WIRELESS PHONES                                     2,155.93  
  113271 8/12/2016 VOICES TRANSLATION AND INTER TRANSLATION                                             150.05  
  113272 8/12/2016 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY      DBA JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                              411.30  
  113273 8/12/2016 RICHARD WEINBERG                   DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  
  113274 8/12/2016 WURTH USA WEST INC.                SHOP SUPPLIES                                           639.55  

1,702,580.12

0.00

$1,702,580.12

Prior Cash Report Voided Checks: 0.00

Current Cash Report Voided Checks:

Grand Total:

10:4117-Aug-16Accounts Payable Check Register



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District
Cash Receipts of Accounts Receivable

Date Company Description Amount

8/2/2016 ASTI Holding Company, LLC          Overpass Property Lease Aug '16 15,650.26

8/2/2016 Bristol Farms/Lazy Acres           Advertising on Buses                                             597.00

8/3/2016 Jim Haggerty                       Retiree - Vision Aug '16 12.20

8/3/2016 UCSB                               Ads Collaboration                                                2,393.09

8/8/2016 Montecito Bank & Trust             Advertising on Buses                                             5,396.00

8/8/2016 UCSB - Parking Services-7001       Passes/Passports Sales                                           6,772.00

8/11/2016 Idea Engineering, Inc.             Advertising on Buses                                             2,637.00

8/12/2016 EF International School            Passes/Passports Sales                                           8,533.50

8/15/2016 City of SB Creeks Division         Advertising on Buses                                             3,888.00

$45,879.05Total Accounts Receivable Paid During Period

8/16/2016 2:47:16 PMCash Report Accounts Receivable Printed



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: AUGUST 23, 2016 AGENDA ITEM #: 7 

TYPE: ACTION 

PREPARED BY:   RYAN GRIPP ______________________________ 
     Signature 

REVIEWED BY:   GENERAL MANAGER______________________________  
   GM Signature 
   

SUBJECT: Janitorial Services IFB Contract Award Recommendation 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Based upon the discussion that follows, staff recommends that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to execute a three-year base janitorial services contract with JaniCare for an 
estimated total dollar value of $162,924 with two one-year contract options for an estimated 
dollar amount of $55,188* (option year 1) and $55,320* (option year 2).  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The janitorial services are for Olive Terminal and the Transit Center. The services consist of 
typical after-hours custodial work; extra daytime cleanings of public and driver restrooms; 
periodic custodial services such as carpet and window cleaning; emergency cleaning services; 
and graffiti removal services in the TC public restrooms. The latter two services would be billed 
on an hourly basis over and above the fixed monthly fee. 

 
A fee would also be paid to the contractor for managing the consumable supplies inventory  
(e.g., toilet paper, hand soap) based on the dollar volume of actual purchases. MTD will 
specify the vendor, products to be ordered, and pay the invoices. The contractor will order, 
stock, and resupply consumables. This process was initiated in 2008 to give MTD greater cost 
control without entailing the corresponding staff time for inventory management. 
 
PROJECT JUSTIFICATION & BUDGET 

Basic janitorial services for offices, bathrooms, kitchens, public spaces, etc. are a standard and 
necessary function for maintaining a clean and hygienic environment. Under the proposed 
contract, janitorial services would be about $54,300 each year for the three-year base contract 
period. With a Contract Maintenance budget of $64,296 for the current fiscal year, the contract 
would provide budget savings. 

                                            
 The amount is estimated rather than fixed because roughly 10% of the contract is subject to either an hourly rate component 
for emergency services or a fee-based payment for actual consumable supplies purchased, both discussed later in the report. 



MTD Board of Directors Report August 23, 2016 
 

Agenda Item #??  Page 2 of 2 

 
SOLICITATION PROCESS 

Invitation for Bids— The Invitation for Bids (IFB) was publicly noticed in July, 2016 in the 
Ventura County Star and the Santa Barbara News-Press. It was simultaneously emailed to 10 
firms indicating interest in the solicitation. A pre-bid conference was attended by four firms. 
Subsequent questions and requests for clarification resulted in one addendum, and the bid 
process culminated in the receipt of two proposals by the August, 2016 deadline. The results 
of the two bids are shown below. 
 

Rank  Bidder Bid 

1 JaniCare $273,432.00 

2 Big Green Cleaning Company $587,796.00 

 
Bid Evaluation—The IFB process dictates that award be made to the lowest bidder found 
responsive to the solicitation requirements and that it is technically and financially capable of 
undertaking the project. JaniCare, the low bidder, has been found to be both responsive and 
responsible. Required forms and certifications were provided, and work and credit references 
were contacted and found adequate.  
 
Price Analysis—The purpose of the bid process is to secure a competitive market-based price. 
Regardless, some level of price analysis is appropriate and necessary under MTD and FTA 
procurement requirements. JaniCare’s bid of $53,868 for the first year is about $17,000 less 
than the incumbent’s price for the current contract year, which will expire August 31st. The 
Independent Cost Estimate (ICE) developed for the solicitation used the Consumer Price Index 
which was applied to the current contract year of the incumbent resulting in a first contract year 
ICE of $73,519. That JaniCare’s bid is substantially lower than both the contract price for the 
current year and the ICE for next year does merit consideration. In support of the bid, JaniCare 
was at the pre-bid meeting for this project and toured the facilities. It is a Goleta firm with many 
janitorial service contracts and is thus experienced at pricing jobs. Also, it bid with knowledge 
of the incumbent’s current pricing. From this perspective, JaniCare bid in a competitive 
environment and its bid is considered fair and reasonable. 
 

CONTRACT EXECUTION 

If contract award is authorized by the Board, staff will issue JaniCare a “Notification of 
Contingent Award” indicating MTD’s intent to execute a contract for the Janitorial Services IFB 
contingent upon receipt of required certificates of insurance. Once required documents are 
received MTD’s General Manager, Jerry Estrada, will execute the contract with JaniCare. 



 

Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 

Janitorial Services 

MASTER AGREEMENT with JANICARE 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District, an incorporated 
transit district under Sections 95000, et seq. of the California Public Utilities Code ("MTD"), and JaniCare, a 
California Corporation ("Contractor"), at Santa Barbara, California, as of the later date set forth below the 
signatures executing this Agreement. 

WHEREAS: 

A. MTD desires to engage Contractor to provide janitorial services at all MTD facilities for a three-year base 
period and options for two, one-year extensions (the "Project"); 

B. Contractor represents that it has the knowledge and experience to carry out the Project, and desires to carry 
out the Project pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof, and; 

C. Based upon the representations made by Contractor, MTD desires to retain the services of Contractor to carry 
out the aforesaid Project, upon the within terms and conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the parties do hereby agree as follows: 

1. Effect of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby made express provisions of this Agreement. 

2. FTA Provisions. The Project is funded in part by the Federal Transit Administration of the U.S. Department 
of Transportation and, as such, this Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions contained in Federal Transit 
Administration Contract Provisions which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein by this 
reference.  

3. Public Works Provisions. Not applicable to this agreement. 

4. Statement of Work. MTD has heretofore issued on July 12, 2016, as amended by addendum 1 issued July 29, 
2016, the statement of work contained in Invitation for Bids (IFB) Janitorial Services, a true copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by this reference.  

5. Bid. Contractor has heretofore submitted on August 3, 2016 a bid to carry out the Project, true copies of 
relevant parts that are attached hereto as Exhibit "C" and incorporated herein by this reference.  

6. Order of Control. Contractor shall carry out the Project described in Exhibit "B" to this Agreement for the 
price quoted in Exhibit "C". All work and services shall be performed according to and controlled by the terms 
and provisions of this Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto. In the event of any conflict between the 
contract documents, the following order of control shall prevail: MTD Master Agreement, Exhibit "A", Exhibit 
"B", Exhibit "C".  

7. Contract Price. Contractor shall carry out the Project for the monthly fixed fees, consumable supplies 
management fees and hourly labor rates in accordance with Exhibit “C” for each Contract Year and, if applicable, 
Option Year.  

8. Payment. Contractor shall submit an invoice to MTD at the beginning of each month that includes the 
monthly fixed fee for the prior month, the labor fee for actual hours incurred in the prior month, and the 
consumable supplies management fee based on actual consumable supplies purchased in the prior month, each 
calculated as stipulated in the Statement of Work. Payment from MTD shall be made to Contractor no later than 
thirty (30) days after receipt of a valid invoice which shall be sent to: Santa Barbara MTD, Attn: Accounts 
Payable, 550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA  93101. 

9. Taxes. MTD is exempt from the payment of Federal Excise and Transportation taxes. Unless specified 
otherwise in the Agreement, MTD is subject to applicable California Sales Tax for Santa Barbara County which 
shall have been included in the Contractor’s bid price and shall be included on the Contractor’s invoice. 



MTD Master Agreement  Page 2 of 7 

Janitorial Services  JaniCare 

10. Project Schedule. Contractor shall carry out the Project for a three-year period beginning September 1, 2016 
through September 2, 2019 and, if MTD exercises both of the two one-year options, through August 31, 2021.  To 
accommodate weekends and holidays each contract year shall be identified as follows: 

September 1, 2016 through August 31, 2017 
September 1, 2017 through September 3, 2018 
September 4, 2018 through September 2, 2019 
September 3, 2019 through August 31, 2020 (if the option is exercised by MTD) 
September 1, 2020 through August 31, 2021 (if the option is exercised by MTD) 

11. Delivery & Freight. Unless specified otherwise in the statement of work, any item provided under this 
Agreement shall be delivered FOB Santa Barbara to 550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA  93101. Any Project 
freight and delivery charges shall have been already included in the Contractor’s bid price and shall not be paid 
otherwise by MTD.  

12. Title & Risk of Loss. The Contractor shall have title to and bear the risk of any loss of or damage to any item 
provided hereunder until delivered and, if applicable pursuant to this Agreement or standard industry practice, 
installed or otherwise set up for usage. Upon such delivery and applicable installation and setup, title shall pass 
from the Contractor to MTD, and the Contractor's responsibility for loss or damage shall cease, except for loss or 
damage resulting from the Contractor's negligence. Such passing of title shall not constitute acceptance of an item 
by MTD. The Contractor shall further warrant that the title to any item provided hereunder is free from all claims, 
encumbrances and liens.  

13. Damages. All losses or damages arising from any unforeseen circumstances, either natural or artificial, which 
may be encountered by the Contractor during the performance of the Project under this Agreement shall be 
sustained solely by the Contractor. This provision shall also apply to losses or damages resulting from any act or 
omission not authorized by this Agreement on the part of the Contractor or any agent or person employed by the 
Contractor. 

14. Defective, Damaged or Noncompliant Work. Any items, services, work or systems acquired pursuant to this 
Agreement found to be defective, damaged or non-compliant with the statement of work at the time of delivery or 
installation shall be replaced by the Contractor without additional cost to MTD. If the Contractor should fail to 
promptly comply with any order to replace or repair any defective items, services, work or systems, MTD shall 
have the authority to deduct the cost of such replacement or repair from any compensation due or to become due 
to the Contractor. Nothing in this section shall limit or restrict any warranty provisions of this Agreement or any 
exhibits hereto. 

15. Acceptance. All items or services to be furnished by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
subject to acceptance by MTD. MTD shall inspect such deliverables to determine acceptability no later than five 
(5) calendar days after said deliverables are received and, if applicable under the Agreement or standard industry 
practice, installed or otherwise set up for usage. Acceptance shall occur when it is determined by MTD that all 
item or services provided pursuant to this Agreement are in compliance with the statement of work or any other 
applicable contract documents. Upon acceptance, formal notification thereof shall be made by MTD via notice to 
the Contractor.  

16. Warranty. Not applicable to this contract. 

17. Changes. Any changes or modifications to this Agreement must be in writing, and agreed to by both parties. 

18. Insurance.  

a. Contractor’s Insurance Representations to MTD. 

i. It is expressly understood and agreed that the insurance coverages required herein: 

A. represent MTD’s minimum requirements and are not to be construed to void or limit Contractor’s 
indemnity obligations as contained in this Agreement nor represent in any manner a determination of 
the insurance coverages Contractor should or should not maintain for its own protection; and 



MTD Master Agreement  Page 3 of 7 

Janitorial Services  JaniCare 

B. are being, or have been, obtained by Contractor in support of Contractor’s liability and indemnity 
obligations under this Agreement. Irrespective of the requirements as to insurance to be carried as 
provided for herein, the insolvency, bankruptcy, or failure of any insurance company carrying 
insurance of Contractor, or the failure of any insurance company to pay claims accruing, shall not be 
held to affect, negate, or waive any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

ii. Failure to obtain and maintain the required insurance shall constitute a material breach of, and default 
under this Contract. If Contractor shall fail to remedy such breach within five (5) business days after 
written notice by MTD, Contractor will be liable for any and all costs, liabilities, damages and penalties 
resulting to MTD from such breach, unless a written waiver of the specific insurance requirement(s) is 
provided to Contractor by MTD. In the event of any failure to Contractor to comply with the provisions of 
this portion of the Agreement, MTD may, without in any way compromising or waiving any right or 
remedy at law or in equity, on notice to Contractor, purchase such insurance, at Contractor’s expense, 
provided that MTD shall have no obligation to do so and if MTD shall do so, Contractor shall not be 
relieved of or excused from the obligation to obtain and maintain such insurance amounts and coverages. 

b. Conditions Affecting All Insurance Required Herein. 

i. Cost of Insurance. All insurance coverage shall be provided at Contractor’s sole expense.  

ii. Maintenance of Insurance. All insurance coverage shall be maintained in effect with limits not less 
than those set forth below at all times during the term of this Agreement. 

iii. Status and Rating of Insurance Company. All insurance coverage shall be written through insurance 
companies admitted to do business in California and with a Best’s Financial Strength Rating of A- or 
better, as shown in the on-line version of Best’s Rating & Criteria Center.  

iv. Restrictive, Limiting, or Exclusionary Endorsements. All insurance coverage shall be provided to 
Contractor Parties in compliance with the requirements herein and shall contain no endorsements that 
restrict, limit, or exclude coverage in any manner without the prior express written approval of MTD. 

v. Limits of Liability. The limits of liability may be provided by a single policy of insurance or by a 
combination of primary and umbrella policies, but in no event shall the total limits of liability available 
for any one occurrence or accident be less than the amount required herein. 

vi. Notice of Cancellation, Nonrenewal, or Material Reduction in Coverage. In the event of cancellation, 
nonrenewal, or material reduction in coverage affecting the certificate holder, thirty (30) days prior 
written notice shall be given to the certificate holder by certified mail, return receipt requested, except in 
the event of cancellation for nonpayment, in which event fifteen (15) days prior written notice shall be 
given. If insurer will not include in its coverage such written notifications, it shall be incumbent upon 
Contractor to comply with such written notification requirements. 

vii. Additional Insured Status. Additional insured status shall be provided in favor of MTD and its 
officers, employees and agents, including consultants, on all liability insurance required herein except 
workers’ compensation/employer’s liability and the certificate of insurance shall reflect same. Such 
additional insured coverage shall be primary to and shall seek no contribution from all insurance available 
to MTD, with MTD’s insurance being excess, secondary, and noncontributing. 

viii. Waiver of Subrogation. All insurance coverage carried by Contractor required herein shall provide a 
waiver of subrogation in favor of MTD for all loss covered by such insurance, and Contractor waives all 
rights of action against MTD for such loss.  

ix. Primary Liability. All insurance coverage required herein shall be primary to and shall seek no 
contribution from all insurance available to MTD, with MTD’s insurance being excess, secondary, and 
noncontributing. Where necessary, coverage shall be endorsed to provide such primary liability, and the 
certificate of insurance shall reflect same. 

x. Deductible/Retention. All insurance required for this project shall have a maximum deductible or 
self-insured retention of $10,000 per policy.  



MTD Master Agreement  Page 4 of 7 

Janitorial Services  JaniCare 

xi. Claims Against Aggregate. MTD must be notified in writing by Contractor at MTD’s address set 
forth herein immediately upon knowledge of possible claims against Contractor that might cause a 
reduction below seventy-five (75%) of any aggregate limit of any primary policy. 

c. Commercial General Liability Insurance. 

i. Coverage. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of all locations and operations of 
Contractor, including but not limited to liability assumed under this Agreement (including the tort liability 
of another assumed in a business contract). Defense shall be provided as an additional benefit and not 
included within the limit of liability. 

ii. Form. Commercial General Liability Occurrence form, at least as broad as an unmodified ISO CG 00 
01 10 93 or its equivalent. 

iii. Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with limits of not less than: 

A. Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000 
B. General Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
C. Product-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit  $2,000,000 
D. Personal and Advertising Injury Limits $1,000,000 
E. Fire Damage (any one fire) $50,000 
F. Medical Expense (any one person) $5,000 

iv. Required Endorsements. 

A. Additional Insured status as required in 18(b)(vii), above. 
B. Notice of Cancellation, Nonrenewal, or Material Reduction in Coverage, as required in 18(b)(vi), 
above. 
C. Personal Injury Liability: The personal injury contractual liability exclusion shall be deleted. 
D. Primary Liability, as required in 18(b)(ix), above. 
E. Waiver of Subrogation, as required in 18(b)(viii), above. 
F. Continuing Commercial General Liability Insurance: Contractor shall maintain such insurance in 
identical coverage, form, and amount, including required endorsements, for at least three (3) years 
following the final date of acceptance by MTD of any items or services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

d. Auto Liability Insurance. 

i. Coverage. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of any auto (including owned, hired, and 
non-owned). 

ii. Form. Business Auto Form (at least as broad as an unmodified ISO CA 0001 or its equivalent). 

iii. Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with a limit of not less than $1,000,000, combined 
single limit. 

iv. Required Endorsements. 

A. Additional Insured status as required in 18(b)(vii), above. 
B. Notice of Cancellation, Nonrenewal, or Material Reduction in Coverage, as required in 18(b)(vi), 
above. 
C. Waiver of Subrogation, as required in 18(b)(viii), above. 

e. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

i. Coverage. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of Contractor’s employment of workers and 
anyone for whom Contractor may be liable for workers’ compensation claims. Workers’ compensation 
insurance is required, and no “alternative” forms of insurance shall be permitted.  

ii. Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with a limit of not less than: 

A. Workers’ Compensation: Statutory limits 
B. Employer’s Liability:  $1,000,000 each accident and disease. 



MTD Master Agreement  Page 5 of 7 

Janitorial Services  JaniCare 

iii. Required Endorsements. 

A. Notice of Cancellation, Nonrenewal, or Material Reduction in Coverage, as required in 18(b)(vi), 
above. 
B. Waiver of Subrogation, as required in 18(b)(viii), above. 

f. Other Insurance. MTD shall have the right, exercisable in its sole judgment at any time by giving prior 
written notice thereof to Contractor, to require Contractor to increase the limit and coverage amount of any 
insurance Contractor is required to maintain pursuant to this Agreement to an amount that MTD may, in its 
sole judgment, deem reasonably sufficient; and purchase other insurance and/or endorsement in such amounts 
or types as MTD may reasonably require from time to time. 

19. Bonding. Not applicable to this contract. 

20. Termination. For applicable terms, refer to Paragraph 21 (Termination) in Federal Transit Administration: 
Contract Provisions which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 

21. Liquidated Damages. Not applicable to this agreement. 

22. Infringement of Patents. Not applicable to this agreement. 

23. Rights in Data. Not applicable to this agreement. 

24. Indemnification. The Contractor shall, to the extent permitted by law protect, indemnify, defend, and hold 
MTD and its officers, employees and agents, including consultants, harmless from and against any and all 
liabilities, damages, claims, demands, liens, encumbrances, judgments, awards, losses, costs, expenses, and suits 
or actions or proceedings, including reasonable expenses, costs and attorneys' fees incurred by MTD and its 
officers, employees and agents, including consultants, in the defense, settlement or satisfaction thereof, for any 
injury, death, loss or damage to persons or property of any kind whatsoever, arising out of, or resulting from, the 
acts, errors or omissions of the Contractor, including acts, errors or omissions of its officers, employees, servants, 
agents, subcontractors and suppliers; and upon receipt of notice and if given authority, shall settle at its own 
expense or undertake at its own expense the defense of any such suit, action or proceeding, including appeals, 
against the MTD and its officers, employees and agents, including consultants, relating to such injury, death, loss 
or damage. Each party shall promptly notify the other in writing of the notice or assertion of any claim, demand, 
lien, encumbrance, judgment, award, suit, action or other proceeding hereunder. The Contractor shall have sole 
charge and direction of the defense of such suit, action or proceeding. The MTD shall not make any admission 
which might be materially prejudicial to the Contractor unless the Contractor has failed to take over the conduct 
of any negotiations or defense within a reasonable time after receipt of the notice and authority above provided. 
The MTD shall at the request of the Contractor furnish to the Contractor all reasonable assistance that may be 
necessary for the purpose of defending such suit, action or proceeding, and shall be repaid all reasonable costs 
incurred in doing so. The MTD shall have the right to be represented therein by advisory counsel of its own 
selection at its own expense. The obligations of the Contractor under this clause shall not extend to circumstances 
where the injury, or death, or damages is caused solely by the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the MTD, its 
officers, employees, agents or consultants, including negligence in the preparation of the Contract documents, or 
the giving of directions or instructions with respect to the requirements of the Contract by written order.  

25. Notice. Notices in connection with this Agreement shall be made in writing and may be delivered either 
personally, by governmental postal service (regular, certified or registered), by private delivery service, or by 
email. Receipt shall be deemed to have occurred when actually made to the party or its designated agent. Such 
notices shall be properly addressed to the intended party as follows: 

 MTD: CONTRACTOR: 
 Jerry Estrada, General Manager Dwayne Walker, Vice President 
 Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District JaniCare 
 550 Olive Street 100 Adams Road, Suite A 
 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 Goleta, CA93117 
 Email:  jestrada@sbmtd.gov Email: dwayne@janicare.com  



MTD Master Agreement  Page 6 of 7 

Janitorial Services  JaniCare 

26. Attorney Fees and Costs. In the event of a controversy (including, but not limited to arbitration or an criminal 
or civil filing in a Federal Court or a court of any of the United States) between the parties with respect to the 
enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such controversy shall be entitled to 
receive, in addition to such other award as the court may deem appropriate, full reimbursement for its court costs 
and reasonable attorney fees incurred therein. 

27. Negation of Partnership. This Agreement creates a relationship between two independent contractors and does 
not, nor may it be interpreted to, create the relationship of joint venturers, partners, employee/employer, or any 
other business relationship. 

28. No Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by either party, and any attempt by either party to assign its 
obligations hereunder shall be void ab initio at the election of the other party, which election may be made by 
written notice within ten (10) days of the non-assigning party's receipt of actual knowledge of such attempted 
assignment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, at the election of the other party, the obligations and 
burdens of a party shall bind and apply to any permitted successor in interest or assignee of the business and/or 
operations of a party. 

29. Partial Invalidity. In the event that any portion of this Agreement or any provision hereof shall be deemed as 
invalid as contrary to applicable law, the balance of this Agreement shall be enforced according to its term, and 
that portion found unenforceable shall be interpreted and enforced to the extent that it may be within said 
applicable laws. 

30. Disputes. This Agreement shall be construed and all disputes arising therefrom shall be settled in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California. Venue for any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be in Santa 
Barbara, California. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be resolved by 
binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the 
American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) then pertaining (available at www.adr.org), except where those rules 
conflict with this provision, in which case this provision controls. Any court with jurisdiction shall enforce this 
clause and enter judgment on any award. The arbitrator shall be selected within twenty business days from 
commencement of the arbitration from the AAA’s National Roster of Arbitrators pursuant to agreement or 
through selection procedures administered by the AAA. Within 45 days of initiation of arbitration, the Parties 
shall reach agreement upon and thereafter follow procedures, including reasonable limits on discovery, assuring 
that the arbitration will be concluded and the award rendered within no more than eight months from selection of 
the arbitrator or, failing agreement, procedures meeting such time limits will be designed by the AAA and 
adhered to by the Parties. The arbitration shall be held in Santa Barbara, California and the arbitrator shall apply 
the substantive law of California, except that the interpretation and enforcement of this arbitration provision shall 
be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act. Prior to commencement of arbitration, emergency relief is available 
from any court to avoid irreparable harm. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL NOT AWARD EITHER PARTY 
PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, MULTIPLIED OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. Prior to commencement of 
arbitration, however, the Parties must attempt to mediate their dispute using a professional mediator from AAA, 
the CPR Institute for Dispute Resolution, or like organization selected by agreement or, absent agreement, 
through selection procedures administered by the AAA. Within a period of 45 days after the request for 
mediation, the Parties agree to convene with the mediator, with business representatives present, for at least one 
session to attempt to resolve the matter. In no event will mediation delay commencement of the arbitration for 
more than 45 days absent agreement of the Parties or interfere with the availability of emergency relief. 

31. Prohibited Interest. The parties hereto covenant and agree that to their knowledge no board member, officer, 
or employee of MTD, during his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, has any interest, whether contractual, non 
contractual, financial or otherwise, in this transaction, or in the business of a contracting party other than MTD. If 
any such interest comes to the knowledge of either party at any time, a full and complete disclosure of all such 
information will be made in writing to the other parties, even if such interest would not be considered a conflict of 
interest under Article 4, Chapter 1, Divisions 4 and 4.5, Title I of the Government Code of the State of California. 

32. Compliance with Laws and Regulations. Contractor shall warrant that in the performance of work under 
contract to MTD that they shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and ordinances, and all 
lawful orders, rules, and regulations thereunder. 



MTD Master Agreement  Page 7 of 7 

Janitorial Services  JaniCare 

33. Audit and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall agree that all materials supplied and services 
performed under the Project, facilities used in connection therewith, and records and documentation thereunto 
appertaining shall be subject to inspection, test, or audit by duly authorized representatives of MTD and the State 
of California. The Contractor agrees to maintain all required records relating to the Project for at least three years 
after MTD makes final payment and all other pending matters are closed. 

34. Equal Employment Opportunity. For applicable terms, refer to Paragraph 24 (Civil Rights Requirements) in 
Federal Transit Administration Contract Provisions which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 

35. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and its attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the 
parties and shall be deemed to supersede and cancel any and all previous representations, understandings, or 
agreements between MTD and Contractor as to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may only be amended 
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties. 

36. No Waiver. The failure of either party at any time to require performance by the other party of any provision 
of this Agreement shall in no way affect that party's right to enforce such provisions, nor shall the waiver by either 
party of any breach of any provision of this Agreement be taken or held to be a waiver of any further breach of the 
same provision. 

37. Counterparts & Email. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. The parties agree that 
a scanned and emailed signature may substitute for and have the same legal effect as the original signature. 

38. Qualifications. Contractor or Contractor’s representative (Contractor) certifies that Contractor is qualified to 
do business and is in good standing in the State of California, and that Contractor has authority to enter into and 
perform its obligations under this Agreement, which constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Contractor. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be executed. 
 
 SANTA BARBARA MTD JANICARE 
 
 
 _________________________________ __________________________________ 
 Jerry Estrada, General Manager Dwayne Walker 
 
 
 _________________________________ __________________________________ 
 Date Date 
 



 

 

This page intentionally left blank



 

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

CONTRACT PROVISIONS 
 

Janitorial Services - Janicare 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1. Fly America Requirements (not applicable to this contract) .......................................................... 1 

2. Buy America Requirements (not applicable to this contract) ......................................................... 1 

3. Charter Bus & School Bus Requirements (not applicable to this contract) ................................... 1 

4. Cargo Preference Requirements (not applicable to this contract) ................................................. 1 

5. Seismic Safety Requirements (not applicable to this contract) ..................................................... 1 

6. Energy Conservation Requirements ............................................................................................. 1 

7. Clean Water Requirements ........................................................................................................... 1 

8. Bus Testing (not applicable to this contract) ................................................................................. 1 

9. Pre-Award & Post-Delivery Audit Requirements (not applicable to this contract) ......................... 1 

10. Lobbying ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

11. Access to Records & Reports ....................................................................................................... 2 

12. Federal Changes .......................................................................................................................... 2 

13. Bonding Requirements (not applicable to this contract) ................................................................ 2 

14. Clean Air ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

15. Recycled Products (not applicable to this contract) ...................................................................... 3 

16. Davis-Bacon & Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts (not applicable to this contract) .............................. 3 

17. Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act (not applicable to this contract) ............................. 3 

18. [Reserved] .................................................................................................................................... 3 

19. No Government Obligations to Third Parties ................................................................................ 3 

20. Program Fraud & False or Fraudulent Statements & Related Acts ............................................... 3 

21. Termination ................................................................................................................................... 3 

22. Government-Wide Debarment & Suspension ............................................................................... 4 

23. Privacy Act (not applicable to this contract) .................................................................................. 4 

24. Civil Rights Requirements ............................................................................................................. 4 

25. Breaches & Dispute Resolution .................................................................................................... 5 

26. Patent & Rights in Data (not applicable to this contract) ............................................................... 5 

27. Transit Employee Protective Agreements (not applicable to this contract) ................................... 5 

28. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) ................................................................................... 5 

29. [Reserved] .................................................................................................................................... 5 

30. Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms ....................................................... 5 

31. Drug & Alcohol Testing (not applicable to this contract) ................................................................ 6 

32. Intelligent Transportation System (ITS (not applicable to this contract)) ....................................... 6 

EXHIBIT A



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

EXHIBIT A



FTA Contract Provisions Santa Barbara MTD 

Janitorial Services Page 1 of 6 JaniCare 

1. FLY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

2. BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

3. CHARTER BUS & SCHOOL BUS REQUIREMENTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

4. CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

5. SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

6. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which 
are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts. 

7. CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. The Contractor agrees to report 
each violation to the Purchaser and understands and agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each 
violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office. The Contractor 
also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000. 

8. BUS TESTING—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

9. PRE-AWARD & POST-DELIVERY AUDIT REQUIREMENTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

10. LOBBYING 

The Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 
with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, 
the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, 
grant, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form--LLL, 
"Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions [as amended by "Government 
wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96). Note: Language in 
paragraph (b) herein has been modified in accordance with Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 
1995 (P.L. 104-65, to be codified at 2 U.S.C. 1601, et seq.)] 

(c) The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents 
for all subawards exceeding $100,000 at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.  

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 

EXHIBIT A



FTA Contract Provisions Santa Barbara MTD 

Janitorial Services Page 2 of 6 JaniCare 

and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. [Note: Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 1352(c)(1)-(2)(A), any 
person who makes a prohibited expenditure or fails to file or amend a required certification or disclosure 
form shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
expenditure or failure.] Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its 
certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 
U.S.C. A 3801, et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure. 

[Note: The Contractor shall have previously submitted to MTD a separately signed Lobbying Certification 
containing the above language for itself and any subcontracts exceeding $100,000 as a condition of 
contract award.] 

11. ACCESS TO RECORDS & REPORTS 

(a) The Contractor agrees to provide MTD, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United 
States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of 
the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 CFR 633.17 to provide the FTA 
Administrator or his authorized representatives including any PMO Contractor access to Contractor's 
records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is 
receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311. 

(b) If contract is for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1) through other than 
competitive bidding, the Contractor shall make available records related to the contract to MTD, the 
Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of 
them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection. 

(c) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or 
to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 

(d) The Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract 
for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in 
the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, in which case 
Contractor agrees to maintain same until MTD, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of 
their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions 
related thereto. Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11). 

12. FEDERAL CHANGES 

The Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and 
directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement between 
MTD and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. 
Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract. 

13. BONDING REQUIREMENTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

14. CLEAN AIR 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the 
Purchaser and understands and agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required to 
assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office. The Contractor also agrees to include 
these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal 
assistance provided by FTA. 

EXHIBIT A



FTA Contract Provisions Santa Barbara MTD 

Janitorial Services Page 3 of 6 JaniCare 

15. RECYCLED PRODUCTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

16. DAVIS-BACON & COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

17. CONTRACT WORK HOURS & SAFETY STANDARDS ACT—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

18.  [RESERVED] 

19. NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS TO THIRD PARTIES 

(a) MTD and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal 
Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written 
consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be 
subject to any obligations or liabilities to MTD, Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that 
contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract. 

(b) The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with 
Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to 
identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 

20. PROGRAM FRAUD & FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS & RELATED ACTS 

a) The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as 
amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR 
Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the 
Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may 
make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this 
contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the Contractor 
further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, 
statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties 
of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government 
deems appropriate. 

(b) The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract 
connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by 
FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 
18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government 
deems appropriate. 

(c) The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part 
with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except 
to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions. 

21. TERMINATION 

 (a) Termination for Convenience: MTD, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, 
when it is in the Government's interest. If this contract is terminated, MTD shall be liable only for payment 
under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination. 

(b) Termination for Default 

(1) If the Contractor fails to perform the services, within the time specified in this contract or any 
extension or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, MTD may 
terminate this contract for default. MTD shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of 
Termination specifying the nature of default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for 
services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this contract. 

EXHIBIT A



FTA Contract Provisions Santa Barbara MTD 

Janitorial Services Page 4 of 6 JaniCare 

(2) If this contract is terminated while the Contractor has possession of MTD goods, the Contractor 
shall, upon direction of MTD, protect and preserve the goods until surrendered to MTD or its agent. The 
Contractor and MTD shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods. Failure to 
agree on an amount will be resolved under the Dispute clause. 

(3) If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was 
not in default, the rights and obligations of parties shall be the same as if the termination had been 
issued for the convenience of MTD. 

22. GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT & SUSPENSION 

This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, the Contractor is required 
to verify that none of the Contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 
49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945. The Contractor is 
required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, 
Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, 
the bidder or proposer certifies as follows: The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact 
relied upon by MTD. If it is later determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to remedies available to MTD, the Federal Government may pursue available 
remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to 
comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of 
any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision 
requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions. 

23. PRIVACY ACT—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

24. CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

(a) Nondiscrimination: In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, 
section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, 
the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to 
comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may 
issue. 

(b) Equal Employment Opportunity: The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to the 
underlying contract: 

(1) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex: In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to 
comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor 
(U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 CFR Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 
11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with 
any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the 
future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project. The Contractor agrees to 
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or 
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection 
for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any 
implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

(2) Age: In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as 
amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to 

EXHIBIT A



FTA Contract Provisions Santa Barbara MTD 

Janitorial Services Page 5 of 6 JaniCare 

refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, 
the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

(3) Disabilities: In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 
U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 CFR Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with 
disabilities. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may 
issue. 

The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with 
Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties. 

25. BREACHES & DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Paragraph 30 of the MTD Master Agreement regarding disputes shall be deemed satisfactory to meet the 
federal requirements for dispute resolution. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of said 
Paragraph 30 in all subcontracts. 

26. PATENT & RIGHTS IN DATA—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

27. TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE AGREEMENTS—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

28. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 

(a) This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, 
Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance 
Programs. The national goal for participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) is 10%. MTD’s 
overall goal for DBE participation is 2.9%. A separate contract goal has not been established for this 
procurement. 

(b) The Contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 
performance of this contract. The Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in 
the award and administration of this DOT-assisted contract. Failure by the Contractor to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or 
such other remedy as MTD deems appropriate. Each subcontract the Contractor signs with a subcontractor 
must include the assurance in this paragraph (see 49 CFR 26.13(b)). 

(c) The successful bidder/offeror will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through race-
neutral means throughout the period of performance. 

(d) The Contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for 
satisfactory performance of that work no later than 30 days after the Contractor’s receipt of payment for that 
work from the MTD. In addition, the Contractor may not hold retainage from its subcontractors. 

(e) Contractor must promptly notify MTD whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this 
contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to engage another 
DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The Contractor may not terminate any 
DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written 
consent of MTD. 

29. [RESERVED] 

30. INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS 

The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, 
whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions required 
by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1E, are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the 
contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a 

EXHIBIT A



FTA Contract Provisions Santa Barbara MTD 

Janitorial Services Page 6 of 6 JaniCare 

conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to 
perform any act, or refuse to comply with any MTD requests which would cause MTD to be in violation of 
the FTA terms and conditions. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all 
subcontracts. 

31. DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING—NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

32. INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (ITS) —NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT 

EXHIBIT A



SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

JANITORIAL SERVICES 

STATEMENT OF WORK (Revised July 29, 2016)  

I. LOCATIONS 

The locations to be provided janitorial services under this Statement of Work (SOW) include three buildings at 
the two following addresses and include approximately 21,540 square feet broken down as indicated below: 

Olive Terminal (2 buildings) 
550 Olive Street 
Santa Barbara, CA  93101 

Transit Center (1 building) 
1020 Chapala Street 
Santa Barbara, CA  93101 

 
A. Olive Terminal—The Olive Terminal is composed of the majority of the city block on the “eastside” of 
Santa Barbara defined by Olive, Cota, Salsipuedes, and Haley streets. Areas to be serviced include two separate 
buildings: one, the interior of the two-story Administration Building (14,000 sq. ft.) adjacent to Olive Street 
(plus the two garbage receptacles outside the building); and two, the specified office, lounge, and bathroom 
areas of the Maintenance Building (900 sq. ft.) located at the corner of Salsipuedes Street and Cota Street.  
Attached as Appendix A is an Olive Terminal site plan showing the general areas subject to this SOW. 

B. Transit Center—The Transit Center (TC) is located in downtown Santa Barbara on Chapala Street across 
the street from Ralph’s supermarket. Areas to be serviced include the full interior (4,400 sq. ft.) as well as the 
exterior passenger waiting area (2,240 sq. ft.) defined by the sidewalk directly surrounding the building.  
Attached as Appendix B is a Transit Center site plan showing the general areas subject to this SOW. 

II. SCHEDULE 

Performance of the janitorial services described herein shall be performed during the period September 1, 2016 
through September 2, 2019 with two one-year options for the periods September 3, 2019 through August 31, 
2020 and September 1, 2020 through August 31, 2021.  The janitorial services shall be performed according to 
the schedules specified in this section and in the attached Appendices C, D and E. All night services at the Olive 
Terminal shall be completed no later than midnight except on Sundays when services shall be completed no 
later than 11 PM. All night services at the Transit Center shall be completed no later than 10 PM. 
 
A. Olive Terminal – Administration Building—Office areas and associated restrooms shall be serviced once 
each weekday—other than staff holidays—no sooner than 6 PM. Staff holidays are New Year’s Day, Martin 
Luther King Day, President’s Day, Memorial Day, the 4th of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, the day after 
Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, and Christmas Day. Areas frequented by bus drivers (e.g. restrooms, 
lounge/kitchen, locker room) shall be serviced no sooner than 10 PM each day that bus service is provided (all 
but Thanksgiving and Christmas days). The driver restrooms—excluding the showers—shall be serviced one 
additional time each bus service day between 11 AM and 1 PM. The fare counting room adjacent to the 
drivers’ room may also require service, but special security considerations apply.  This room shall not be 
serviced at night.  Between 11 AM and 1 PM, the janitor shall knock on the door of the fare counting room to 
ask the Farebox Technician if service can be performed and, if authorized by the Technician, perform specified 
services.  If there is no answer or the Technician does not authorize service, no service is required that day.  
Appendices F and G contain detailed floor plans of both floors of the Administration building with color coding 
of each room by schedule. Rooms that shall not be provided janitorial services are also identified. These include 
various closets and storage areas, the data server room, and an electrical room. 

B. Olive Terminal – Maintenance Building—The three staff offices and unisex restroom in the Maintenance 
Building shall be serviced once each non-holiday weekday no sooner than 10 PM. Areas frequented by 
mechanics (e.g. restrooms, lounge/kitchen, locker room) shall be serviced no sooner than 10 PM each day that 

EXHIBIT B



Janitorial Services  Statement of Work  

Santa Barbara MTD Page 2 of 8 Revised July 29, 2016 

bus service is provided (all but Thanksgiving and Christmas days). The shop restroom and locker area—
excluding the shower—shall be serviced one additional time each bus service day between 11 AM and 1 PM. 
Appendix H contains a detailed floor plan of the Maintenance Building with color coding of each area by 
schedule. Areas that shall not be provided janitorial services are also identified. These include the shop floor, 
the parts room (with the exception of the area around the two desks in the parts room), and the electrical room. 

C. Transit Center – Interior—The internal passenger waiting area and the Customer Service Representative 
(CSR) area shall be serviced no sooner than 7 PM each day that bus service is provided (all but Thanksgiving 
and Christmas days). The public restrooms and driver’s unisex bathrooms shall be serviced two additional 
times each bus service day: between 9:30 AM and 10:30 AM and between 3:00 PM and 4:00 PM on weekdays; 
and between 10:00 AM and 11:00 AM and between 2:00 PM and 3:00 PM on weekends. Appendix I contains a 
detailed floor plan of the Transit Center building with color coding of each area by schedule. 

D. Transit Center – Exterior—The external passenger waiting area composed of the raised sidewalk area 
surrounding the TC building shall be serviced no sooner than 8 PM each day that bus service is provided (all but 
Thanksgiving and Christmas days). Appendix B contains a Transit Center site plan that delineates that sidewalk 
area—which includes the garbage and recyclable receptacles thereon—subject to janitorial services. 

III. SERVICE TASKS 

A. Task Listings & Schedules—The janitorial services provided under this SOW are detailed by task type, 
frequency and location in Appendices C, D and E respectively. 

B. Extra Bathroom Service—Section II: Schedule above specified that certain bathrooms will be serviced more 
than once daily. During these extra daytime-hour cleanings, the bathrooms shall receive the full complement of 
daily services that are carried out during the normal nighttime service. Note that these service tasks are 
highlighted in yellow in the task listing in Appendix C. 

C. Bathroom Graffiti Removal—All restrooms, particularly the public restrooms at the Transit Center, are 
subject to being marked up with graffiti on a daily basis. The janitorial services provided under this SOW shall 
include removal of such graffiti on an as needed basis immediately as it is discovered. If graffiti removal 
requires less than 15 minutes of total time during the three daily visits, it shall be included as part of the fixed-
price monthly service. Graffiti removal time in excess of 15 minutes per day will be billable in 15 minute 
intervals. MTD estimates that 15 billable hours per month will be incurred by the Contractor. Note that MTD 
shall provide the graffiti removal cleanser, which will be stored in the TC and Olive Terminal janitorial closets. 

D. Emergency Services—The janitorial services provided under this SOW shall include being on call for 
emergency services at both the Olive Terminal and the Transit Center between the hours of 6:00 AM and 7:00 
PM on weekdays, 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM on Saturdays, and 9:00 AM to 6:00 PM on Sundays on each day that 
bus service is provided (all but Thanksgiving and Christmas days). Contractor shall respond to such calls within 
30 minutes. MTD will pay a one-hour minimum with additional billable time in 15 minute intervals. The 
Contractor hourly rate shall incorporate all costs including supplies and travel time, which shall not be billed 
separately. MTD estimates that 5 billable hours per month will be incurred by the Contractor.   

E. Garbage & Recyclables Disposal—MTD lines all garbage receptacles and non-office recyclable receptacles 
and provides a recyclable receptacle adjacent to most refuse cans (excluding restrooms). Contractor shall be 
responsible for emptying receptacles and disposing of such garbage/recyclables as stipulated in the following: 

 Receptacles include all those in the areas subject to janitorial services as described in Section I: Locations 
and Appendices C, D and E. Note that this includes all exterior receptacles at the Transit Center and the 
two exterior garbage receptacles at the front and rear entrances of the Administration Building (including 
the ash tray on top of the front entrance receptacle).  This also includes two receptacles on the front patio 

EXHIBIT B



Janitorial Services  Statement of Work  

Santa Barbara MTD Page 3 of 8 Revised July 29, 2016 

of the Administration Building and the cigarette receptacle in the designated smoking area in the 
Maintenance yard. 

 Garbage shall be emptied from receptacles and disposed of whenever an area receives janitorial services. 
Recyclables shall be emptied from receptacles and disposed of on an as needed basis except in 
kitchens/lounges, where they shall be disposed of whenever the room receives janitorial services. 

 Liners shall be replaced whenever garbage or recyclables are disposed of in exterior, kitchen/lounge or 
bathroom receptacles where they shall be replaced as needed and every Friday in all other receptacles. 

 Dark, opaque plastic liners shall be used for garbage receptacles; clear liners shall be used for applicable 
recyclable receptacles. Similar characteristics shall be used for any bulk garbage/recyclable bags. 

 
All Olive Terminal garbage and recyclables shall be disposed of in the appropriate dumpster adjacent to the 
Fuel Island, as indicated in Appendix A: Olive Terminal Site Plan. 
 
Each night, all Transit Center garbage and recyclables shall be placed inside the Transit Center door facing 
Chapala Street. Such refuse shall be in securely tied bulk or liner bags with the tied end facing up to prevent 
fluid leakage. Any leaking bags shall be double-wrapped to eliminate such leaks. 
 
F. Air Fresheners & Batteries—Wall-mounted air freshener devices are maintained in all restrooms.  
Contractor shall monitor such devices such that the batteries or aerosol cans are replaced as necessary. The 
unisex driver’s restroom at the Transit Center contains a hands-free paper towel dispenser that requires battery 
replacement, which the Contractor shall also monitor and replace as necessary.  

IV. SERVICE STANDARDS & SAFETY 

A. Definitions—Definitions are provided for a few terms used in this SOW in order to provide further 
clarification to applicable service standards: 

Dust: To clean a surface free of all dust, dust streaks, lint, cobwebs, and non-adhered dirt. Dust shall be 
removed rather than stirred up or scattered. It shall be accomplished using microfiber, electrostatic or 
functionally similar dust cloths or mitts. Feather dusters shall not be used. Dusters with extendable poles 
made specifically for wall and ceiling dusting shall be used for such surfaces. 
Dust-Mop: To clean a floor free of all debris, dust, dust streaks, lint, cobwebs, and non-adhered dirt. Once 
centralized in piles, debris shall be removed rather than stirred up or scattered. It is accomplished with a 
cotton or cotton-blend looped industrial dust-mop.   
Damp-Mop: To clean a floor so that, when dried, it is free from streaks, smears, dirt residue, shoe marks, 
standing water and odors. It shall always be preceded by sweeping, vacuuming or dust-mopping the floor, 
and shall be accomplished with a cotton or cotton-blend looped industrial rag mop. 
Disinfect: To clean using a product that contains antimicrobial agents that kill microorganisms. Disinfectant 
shall be non-caustic or harmful to the floors or fixtures that it is used upon. 
Vacuuming: Most flat surfaces shall be vacuumed with a commercial upright vacuum.  Corners and 
baseboards may be vacuumed with a portable type vacuum or attachment. 
Deep Clean: To clean grout by hand-scrubbing with a brush and a cleaning agent that does not damage the 
grout yet removes dirt. 

 
B. Cleaning Standards & Requirements—The performance of all cleaning and servicing shall be carried out in 
a professional manner in accordance with accepted industry standards. The following list shows standards or 
tasks that MTD places an emphasis on or requires, regardless of whether considered a typical industry standard.  

 Cleaning/disinfecting toilets and urinals shall always include the exterior portion of the fixture with an 
emphasis on the toilet seat and the top, front and sides of the toilet bowl down to the ground. 

 Water/disinfectant solution used for mopping floors shall be changed when “dirty” such that the 
definition of a damp-mopped floor in the preceding section cannot be met. 

EXHIBIT B



Janitorial Services  Statement of Work  

Santa Barbara MTD Page 4 of 8 Revised July 29, 2016 

 Separate dust mops and mops shall be used for bathrooms. Such implements shall be clearly identified 
as to its use. Any implement used in the bathroom shall not be used on a non-bathroom floor until or 
unless laundered or similarly cleaned. 

 Once used in a bathroom, a water/disinfectant damp-mopping solution shall never be used for a non-
bathroom floor. 

 No janitorial services shall be carried out on desktops including electronic or powered office machines 
including telephones, personal computers, monitors, keyboards, mice, printers, switches, scanners, 
copiers, fax machines, calculators, projectors, televisions, DVD/CD players, or similar devices. 

 An exception to the above is that telephone handsets shall be cleaned and disinfected as stipulated on the 
task listings in the appendices to this SOW. 

 
C. Safety Standards & Requirements—The performance of all cleaning and servicing under this SOW shall be 
carried out in a safe and legal manner in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations. The following bulleted items represent MTD safety requirements or tasks that MTD places an 
emphasis on and requires. It does not and is not meant to represent a full and exhaustive listing of safety 
standards and requirements applicable to the services being carried out under this SOW.  

 “Wet Floor” caution signs, with appropriate symbol and written in both English and Spanish, shall be 
placed on the floor in any area being damp-mopped until the floor is dried. The two public restrooms at 
the Transit Center shall be closed to public use during the two cleanings during business hours. All other 
damp-mopped areas shall remain accessible to MTD personnel during such cleanings at all times. 

 All cleaning products shall be used as directed by manufacturer. Concentrated products shall be diluted 
to the specified ratio; required protective apparatus (e.g., gloves) shall be worn; setting or soaking 
periods shall be adhered to; and rinsing shall occur if directed. 

 A current comprehensive list and three complete hardcopy sets of Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) 
for all appropriate janitorial products shall be provided to a designated MTD employee for inclusion in 
its applicable MSDS libraries.  Applicable MSDS shall be provided to MTD and a receipt of approval 
from MTD shall be obtained by the Contractor prior to use of each chemical. 

 
D. Work Accountability.  The Contractor will be provided with accountability check-off sheets (punch list) 
which are provided at Appendix J and which individual janitorial personnel will use to indicate work performed 
on a daily basis.  The completed check-off sheets will be certified by a supervisor of the contractor’s employees 
and submitted weekly to a designated MTD employee.  The punch list will remain on the counter top of the 
reception desk after daily use and a new list will be put into service each week on a day to be specified by 
MTD. Other instructions regarding use of the punch list and reporting requirements are indicated in Appendix J.  
 
V. JANITORIAL EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES 

A. Contractor-Provided Equipment & Supplies—All janitorial equipment and supplies necessary to carry out 
this SOW, except those listed in B below, shall be provided by the Contractor. Equipment and supplies shall be 
maintained in good working condition; cleaned when appropriate; and repaired or replaced when no longer able 
to effectively carry out its function. 

B. MTD-Provided Supplies—MTD shall provide or make available to the Contractor the following items: 

Graffiti Remover 
Air Freshener Batteries 

Paper Towel Dispenser Batteries 
Garbage/Recyclable Receptacles (not liners) 

 
C. Equipment & Supplies Storage—MTD shall provide one janitorial closet in the Administration Building and 
one at the Transit Center (identified on the applicable floor plans in the Appendices). Each closet shall contain 
shelving and floor space for equipment and supplies; and a janitor’s floor sink with a hot and cold water faucet. 

EXHIBIT B



Janitorial Services  Statement of Work  

Santa Barbara MTD Page 5 of 8 Revised July 29, 2016 

VI. CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES 

A. Types—The Contractor shall provide and restock per the task listings in the Appendices the following 
consumable supplies for bathrooms, kitchens/lounges and garbage/recyclable receptacles: 

 Toilet Paper 
 Paper Towels 

 Toilet Seat Covers 
 Hand Soap 

 Air Freshener Aerosol 
 Receptacle Liners 

 
B. Consumable Ordering—MTD shall provide the Contractor with a listing of consumable supplies by vendor, 
brand name and product line, which the Contractor shall order, stock and resupply as necessary. It is the intent 
of MTD to use a single vendor through a governmental contract or schedule for all such supplies in order to 
secure more favorable pricing. In such case, it will likely be necessary for MTD, as the governmental agency, to 
directly issue purchase orders to and pay the vendor. Regardless, the Contractor shall retain responsibility for 
managing the consumable supplies inventory which, if necessary, shall include providing MTD with timely 
ordering information for purchase orders. For these services, on a monthly basis the Contractor shall be paid a 
fee that shall be calculated as a fixed percent of the total cost excluding tax and freight, of all applicable 
consumable supplies invoiced in the prior month, whether ordered or paid directly by MTD or the Contractor. 
Any consumable supplies invoices paid directly by the Contractor on behalf of MTD shall be reimbursed by 
MTD to the Contractor at the invoice amount paid by the Contractor. 

C. Consumable Storage—As allowed by relevant laws and regulations, consumable supplies may be stored in 
the janitorial closets identified above in Paragraph V(C): Equipment & Supplies Storage. Additional storage for 
consumable supplies shall be provided in the storage room on the first floor of the Administration Building 
adjacent to Driver’s Lounge (see Appendix F). Such supplies storage shall be strictly limited to the MTD-
specified area of this room, as it is primarily used to store non-janitorial supplies. The Contractor shall be 
responsible for any additionally required off-site storage space needs. 

D. Hand Soap—Restrooms at the Transit Center have wall-mounted hand soap dispensers that the Contractor 
shall refill from bulk product. At this time all wall-recessed dispensers at the Olive Terminal have been 
discontinued, although this is subject to change. Currently, all bathrooms use bulk wall-mounted soap 
dispensers. 

E. Air Freshener—All restrooms contain one or two battery-operated wall-mounted air freshener dispensers 
utilizing a 6 ounce aerosol can. Batteries, provided by MTD, shall also be replaced by Contractor as necessary. 

F. Receptacle Liners—Liners shall be of the appropriate size and type for the receptacle. Dark, opaque liners 
shall be used for garbage receptacles; clear liners shall be used for applicable recyclable receptacles. Similar 
characteristics shall be used for any bulk garbage/recyclable bags. Note that most offices contain blue 
wastebasket-style recyclable containers that are not and do not need to be lined. 

G. Paper Towels—To avoid outages in kitchen areas which experience high usage of paper towels, additional 
stock will be placed in each kitchen. 

VII. CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Primary Contact—Contractor shall designate a person that will be the primary single point of contact for all 
janitorial service-related issues. MTD shall be provided with a telephone number for reaching the primary 
contact in the event of an emergency. When the primary contact is unavailable for planned absences, MTD shall 
be provided the name and means to contact the backup single point of contact.  The Contractor shall respond 
within 20 minutes of a call being made by MTD to the designated person, whether direct contact is made or a 
message is left. 

B Hiring Standards—Given that Contractor employees will have unmonitored access to and be performing 
unmonitored services in MTD facilities, the Contractor is expected to implement comprehensive hiring and 

EXHIBIT B



Janitorial Services  Statement of Work  

Santa Barbara MTD Page 6 of 8 Revised July 29, 2016 

screening standards. At a minimum, Contractor shall impose the following hiring standards for any Contractor 
employee provided access to MTD property or performing any services under this SOW on MTD property: 

 Legal right to work in the United States 
 Ability to speak, understand, read and write English 
 Adequate work and personal references for ability and character 
 Negative screening for illegal drugs including marijuana metabolites, cocaine metabolites, opiate 

metabolites, phencyclidine, and amphetamines 
 No convictions of unsuitable offenses (e.g., grand theft, burglary, etc.) determined by criminal 

background check for all felony and misdemeanor convictions 
 
C. Dress & Identification—At all times while on MTD property, Contractor employees shall adhere to the 
following uniform and attire standards: 

 Wear either a company uniform or shirt and photo ID badge that identifies them as employees of the 
Contractor 

 Be appropriately and safely dressed (e.g., no sandals, “tank tops,” or shirt graphics in bad taste) 
 Be groomed and follow hygiene practices that adhere to common local standards 
 Must wear MTD-provided reflective vest at all times in the bus yard (outdoor area within MTD fences) 

 
D. Code of Conduct—Contractor employees shall conduct themselves in a professional and ethical manner at 
all times when providing services on MTD property. Certain conduct, including the following, is considered 
unacceptable and will result in forbidding such employee from carrying out further services on MTD property: 

 Theft or unauthorized removal of money or property from MTD, its employees, passengers or anyone else 
on MTD property. 

 Embezzlement, bribery and other similar forms of dishonesty. 
 Possession of any dangerous, unauthorized materials, such as explosives, firearms or other similar items 

on MTD property. 
 Gross negligence, gross carelessness, or willful acts, which result in damage to MTD employees, its 

passengers, or MTD property or equipment. 
 Violation of safety or health rules, or engaging in conduct that creates a safety or health hazard. 
 Knowingly harboring or refusing treatment of a disease or other physical condition that endangers MTD 

employees, passengers, or anyone else on MTD property. 
 Obscene, abusive, intimidating, disruptive, derogatory, or threatening language or behavior with MTD 

employees, customers, passengers or anyone else on or adjacent to MTD property. 
 
Following are additional examples of behavior that may result in prohibiting a Contractor employee from 
carrying out services on MTD property: 

 Smoking in prohibited areas* 
 Sleeping on the job 
 Unauthorized use of MTD telephones 
 Failure to display common courtesy 
 Fighting, either verbally or physically 
 Striking anyone with a hand, fist or object 
 Interfering with an MTD employee's work 
 Unauthorized use/misuse of MTD equipment 
 Release of confidential MTD information 
 Harassment toward another individual 

EXHIBIT B



Janitorial Services  Statement of Work  

Santa Barbara MTD Page 7 of 8 Revised July 29, 2016 

* At Olive Terminal, smoking is only allowed in the designated area adjacent to the bus wash (see Appendix A). Smoking is not 
allowed anywhere on the Transit Center property. 

 
Other offenses not on these lists may be perceived as serious even if they are of a lesser nature. If warnings have 
previously been issued, these multiple lesser offenses may result in prohibition from MTD property. MTD 
retains the right to prohibit a Contractor employee from performing work on MTD property for other reasonable 
causes. This section is not meant to provide an exhaustive list of unacceptable conduct. Contractor employees 
are expected to comply with applicable laws, use common sense, and adhere to the precepts of common 
decency at all times. 
 
E. Accessibility & Security—Contractor and its employees shall keep in mind and, to the extent applicable, 
follow practices that ensure the security and safety of MTD facilities, equipment and personnel. To this end, the 
following accessibility and security standards and practices shall be implemented: 

 Keys—Contractor primary contact shall be issued two copies of all keys necessary to gain access to 
areas, rooms, closets, cabinets or fixtures required to perform this SOW. It is expected that one set will 
be issued to the lead Contractor employee assigned to the MTD facilities. Given that this will likely be 
two separate lead janitors because there are two MTD sites subject to this SOW, this may in some 
instances necessitate the issuance of more than two copies of some keys. The primary contact or other 
appropriate Contractor employee or location shall have the second set of keys, which shall be available 
for supervisorial oversight, emergencies, or for issuance to Contractor employees covering for lead 
janitor absences. The following standards and restrictions apply to MTD keys: 

 Contractor shall not make copies of any MTD keys unless specifically authorized by MTD. Under 
most circumstances, necessary key additions or replacements shall be provided by MTD. 

 Lost, misplaced, or stolen keys shall be reported to MTD. Exterior door key losses shall be reported 
immediately; for other keys, MTD shall be informed no later than the following business day.  

 Keys shall at all times be kept secure and not available to persons other than those they are issued to.  
 Contractor is expected to have in place a detailed recordkeeping system for tracking and issuing keys. 
 Contractor shall incur all expenses associated with rekeying MTD facilities in the event of key losses.  

 Key Codes—The Driver’s unisex restrooms at the Transit Center may only be accessed by key code. The 
key code will be provided to the primary contact, who will issue it to Contractor employees as necessary. 
Two doors on the first floor of the Administration Building may also be unlocked using a manually 
entered key code. However, because keys open such doors, the code will not be issued to the Contractor. 

 Alarms—MTD will discuss security alarm issues with and provide necessary security alarm access codes 
to the Contractor prior to implementation of janitorial services provided under this SOW. 

 Other Issues—The Contractor and relevant employees shall follow or be aware of the following: 
 Unless informed otherwise by MTD or it is during regular business hours, all doors shall be closed and 

locked after completing janitorial services. Doors, including those to offices and the key-coded first 
floor lobby door of the Administration Building, shall not be propped open at any time.  For security 
purposes Contractor employees must lock down each space as they leave it.  Contractor employees 
shall verify that exterior doors, including the upstairs balcony doors in the conference room of the 
Administration Building, are closed and locked. Doors that shall not be locked generally include 
bathrooms and lounges/kitchens. MTD shall provide more specific direction upon implementation of 
the contract. 

 Contractor employees shall not provide access or entry to any locked building or room to anyone, 
including MTD employees, other than Contractor employees performing janitorial services. 

 In the event of an emergency, Contractor employees may use MTD telephones for calling 9-1-1. In 
nearly all instances, it will be necessary to dial a nine (9) prior to entering 9-1-1. 

EXHIBIT B



Janitorial Services  Statement of Work  

Santa Barbara MTD Page 8 of 8 Revised July 29, 2016 

VIII. CONTRACT OPTIONS 

Near the end of the initial contract term and near the end of the first option period (if it has been exercised), 
MTD will conduct an analysis to determine if it is in its best interest to exercise the first or second option as 
applicable.  During this process, the Contractor may be asked to provide information to assist MTD and, if so, 
will provide it.  Exercise of an option will be solely at the discretion of MTD.  It is anticipated the Contractor 
will be notified of MTD’s decision at least 30 calendar days prior to expiration of the then current contract 
period. 
 
IX. ANTICIPATED CLOSURE OF THE TRANSIT CENTER BUILDING 

MTD will be contracting out renovation of the interior of the Transit Center.  It is anticipated work may begin 
as early as spring 2017 and may take about six months.  During the renovation period, the Contractor will not be 
able to perform specified janitorial services in the Transit Center.  However, bus operations will continue in the 
immediate vicinity and some janitorial services will be required.  Although those services are not fully known at 
this time, MTD plans to negotiate with the Contractor a fee adjustment to reflect the expected reduction in 
service.  The Contractor’s cooperation in this process will be required. 

 
 

End of Statement of Work Text (Also See Appendices A-I Attached) 

 

EXHIBIT B



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

Appendix A 
Olive Terminal Site Plan 

 

 
 
 

 Olive Street 

Cota Street

Salsipuedes Street

Shop 
Floor Parts 

Room

Shop 
Bathroom  & 

Offices 

Fuel Island 

Electric Vehicle Shelter 

Bus Staging Canopy 

Maintenance Building 

Bus Wash 

Administration Building 

Shop 
Breakroom, 
Bathroom, 
 Office & 
Shipping 

Areas receiving 
Janitorial Services 

Non-MTD Property 

NOT TO SCALE: All object dimensions 
and positions in drawing are estimated. 

Dumpster area for 
janitorial waste 

Haley Street 

Smoking Area

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

Appendix B 
Transit Center Site Plan 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(gray area) 

Transit Center Exterior 
Service Schedule 

Gray Area: Everyday (after 8 PM) 

All services completed by 10 PM 

EXHIBIT B



Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 
 

Appendix C 

Janitorial Task & Frequency Schedule 

Sorted By Task Type (Page 1 of 2) 
   All  Olive Terminal Transit Center 

 Bathrooms Offices 
Meeting 
Rooms 

Entries, 
Stairs,  

Hallways, 
Exterior 

Lounges & 
Kitchens 

Building 
Interior 

Building 
Exterior 

FLOORS         

Dispose of all debris & trash on floors Daily Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Daily Daily 

Vacuum carpeted floors, mats & runners (Note 1) -- Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Note 1 -- 

Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors (Note 2) Daily Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Daily -- 

Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors (Note 2) Daily Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Daily -- 

Sweep exterior passenger waiting area including under benches & trash 
cans 

-- 
-- 

 

-- -- 

-- 

-- 

-- 
 

-- -- -- Daily 

Strip, seal, wax & polish passenger waiting area tile floor -- 

-- 
 

-- -- 

-- 

-- 

-- 
 

-- -- -- Jun & Dec 

Strip bathroom floors & Maint bldg employee lounge (breakroom) (Note 3)  Apr/Aug/Dec -- -- 

-- 

-- 

-- 
 

-- Apr/Aug/Dec -- -- 

Strip & polish rear stairwell -- 

-- 
 

-- -- 

-- 

-- 

-- 
 

Mar & Sep -- -- -- 

Shampoo carpets  -- 

-- 
 

Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct -- 

Spot clean carpets -- Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Daily -- 

Buff tile in Admin Bldg (Note 13) -- -- -- Mar/Sep -- -- -- 

Deep clean grout in Admin Bldg (Note 13) -- -- -- Dec -- -- -- 

WALLS, DOORS & WINDOWS        

Spot clean walls, doors & partitions including Admin Building stairwells Daily Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Daily -- 

Spot clean partition glass & TC plate glass up to 7' -- Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Daily Daily 

Clean door glass & mirrors Daily Tues & Fri Daily Daily -- Daily Daily 

Dust window & partition sills -- Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Daily Daily 

Clean graffiti from bathroom walls, ceiling, stalls, fixtures, etc. as needed -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Clean partition glass  & bulletin board glass up to 9' -- Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly Monthly 

Clean & disinfect toilet stalls/partitions & nearby tile walls Weekly -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Clean, disinfect & polish complete elevator -- 

-- 
 

-- -- Weekly -- -- -- 

Clean interior wall & partition windows (glass) up to 9’ -- 

-- 
 

Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly -- -- 

Clean doors including frame & hardware (Note 4) Weekly Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly -- 

Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly -- 

Clean & disinfect tile walls Monthly -- -- --  -- -- 

Damp-wipe baseboards, window sills & partition sills -- Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly -- 

Clean inside of exterior wall windows & both sides of TC plate glass windows -- Jan & Jul Jan & Jul Jan & Jul Jan & Jul -- Monthly 

FIXTURES & FURNITURE        

Empty wastebaskets Daily Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Daily Daily 

Reline wastebaskets  Daily Friday Friday Friday Daily Daily Daily 

Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel, chrome & anodized fixtures (Note 6) Daily -- -- Daily Daily Daily -- 

Clean & disinfect toilets, urinals & basins Daily -- -- -- Daily -- -- 

Restock paper towels, toilet paper, seat covers & hand soap ( Note 7) Daily Tues & Fri  -- Daily -- -- 

Dust horizontal surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops (Note 8) -- Tues & Fri Daily Daily Daily Daily -- 

Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops Daily Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly -- 

Vacuum upholstered furniture -- 

-- 
 

Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly -- 

Clean & disinfect passenger benches -- 

-- 
 

-- -- -- -- Weekly Weekly 

Clean & disinfect shower floors, walls, curtains & fixtures Weekly -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles (Note 9) Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly 

Clean & polish all visible surfaces of wood furniture & banister -- 

-- 

-- 
 

Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly -- -- 

Clean & disinfect telephone handsets -- 

-- 

-- 
 

Monthly Monthly -- Monthly Monthly -- 

Shampoo & extract dirt from all upholstered chairs -- 

-- 

-- 
 

Jan & Jul Jan & Jul -- Jan & Jul Jan & Jul -- 

Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces Feb & Aug Feb & Aug Feb & Aug Feb & Aug Feb & Aug Feb & Aug -- 

Vacuum blinds & curtains -- Mar & Sep Mar & Sep Mar & Sep Mar & Sep  -- 

Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers   Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct -- 

Clean & disinfect 4 kitchen refrigerators (upstairs, drivers’ room, conf. room & 
Maint.) 

-- 
-- -- -- Note 10 -- -- 

 
 

Table Continued on Page 2 
 

 

EXHIBIT B



Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 
 

Appendix C 

Janitorial Task & Frequency Schedule 

Sorted By Task Type (Page 2 of 2) 

 
 All Olive Terminal Transit Center 

Bathrooms Offices 
Meeting 
Rooms 

Entries, 
Stairs,  

Hallways, 
Exterior 

Lounges & 
Kitchens 

Building 
Interior 

Building 
Exterior 

EXTERIOR        

Wipe down patio furniture  -- -- -- Weekly -- -- -- 

Empty cigarette receptacles in designated smoking area in Maintenance yard -- -- -- Weekly -- -- -- 

Empty trash receptacles (Note 5) -- -- 

-- 
 

-- 

-- 
 

Tues & Fri -- 

-- 
 

-- 

-- 
 

-- 

-- 
 

Reline trash receptacles (Note 5) 
Add 

-- -- 

-- 
 

-- 

-- 
 

Weekly -- 

-- 
 

-- 

-- 
 

-- 

-- 
  

 

Note 1: Transit Center to be vacuumed on Tuesdays, Thursdays & Saturdays. 
Note 2: Includes front & rear stair steps & elevator in Admin Building stairs; once per week, remove mats & runners before vacuuming/mopping. 
Note 3: Admin Building upstairs & lobby bathrooms only once per year (Dec); all other bathrooms 3 times per year (Apr, Aug & Dec); polish Maint. lounge 
Note 4: Polish metal handles, knobs, push plates & kick plates. 
Note 5: Includes Admin Bldg exterior trash receptacles/ash tray at front & rear entrances & front patio, but only on Tues & Fri. 
Note 6: Includes drinking fountains, paper towel dispensers, trash receptacles & stairway handrails. 
Note 7: Ensure additional stock of paper towels in 3 kitchen areas to avoid outages. 
Note 8: Only unobstructed surfaces; do not move papers or other items; does NOT include desktops & office equipment on them. Dust & straighten picture frames 
Note 9: Includes the metal housing & lids of the exterior receptacles at both the Administration Building and the Transit Center. 
Note 10: Clean & disinfect twice yearly & wet wipe weekly. 
Note 13 Includes front stairwell; top landing and reception area; first floor entry, hallway & restrooms.  
 

EXHIBIT B



Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 
 

Appendix D 

Janitorial Task & Frequency Schedule  

Sorted By Frequency (Page 1 of 2) 

 

  

All Olive Terminal Transit Center 

Bathrooms Offices 
Meeting 
Rooms 

Entries Stairs 
Hallways,  

Lounges & 
Kitchens 

Building 
Exterior 

Building 
Interior 

Building 
Exterior 

DAILY          

Clean graffiti from bathroom walls, ceiling, stalls, fixtures, etc. as needed             

Dispose of all debris & trash on floors X Tues & Fri X X X  X X 

Empty wastebaskets and exterior trash receptacles (Note 5) X Tues & Fri X X X Tues & Fri X X 

Reline wastebaskets and exterior trash receptacles (Note 5) X Friday Friday Friday X Fri X X 

Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors (Note 2) X Tues & Fri X X X  X   

Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors (Note 2) X Tues & Fri X X X  X   

Vacuum carpeted floors, mats & runners (Note 1)  Tues & Fri X X X  Note 1   

Clean door glass & mirrors X Tues & Fri X X    X X 

Dust horizontal surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops (Note 8)  Tues & Fri X X X  X   

Spot clean walls, doors & partitions including Admin Building stairwells X Tues & Fri X X X  X   

Spot clean partition glass & TC plate glass up to 7'  Tues & Fri X X X  X X 

Dust window & partition sills  Tues & Fri X X X  X X 

Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel, chrome & anodized fixtures (Note 6) X    X X  X   

Clean & disinfect toilets, urinals & basins X      X      

Restock paper towels, toilet paper, seat covers & hand soap (Note 7) X      X      

Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops X             

Sweep exterior passenger waiting area            X 

Spot clean carpets  Tues & Fri X X X  X  

Empty trash receptacles on front patio    Tues & Fri     

Empty trash receptacles outside front entrance door 
Empty trash receptacles outside rear entrance 

   Tues & Fri     

Empty trash receptacles outside rear entrance    Tues & Fri     

WEEKLY          

Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops   X X X  X   

Clean partition glass & bulletin board glass up to 9'    X X  X X 

Vacuum upholstered furniture   X X X  X   

Wipe down patio furniture      Monday   

Empty cigarette receptacles in designated smoking area in Maintenance yard      Monday   

Clean, disinfect & polish complete elevator     X        

Clean & disinfect toilet stalls/partitions & nearby tile walls X             

Clean & disinfect shower floors, walls, curtains & fixtures X             

Clean doors including frame & hardware (Note 4) X             

Clean & disinfect passenger benches       X X 

Clean interior wall & partition windows (glass) up to 9’    X X X    

Clean & disinfect 4 kitchen refrigerators (upstairs, drivers’ room, conf.. room & 
Maint.) 

 
   Note 10 

 
  

MONTHLY          

Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles (Note 9) X  X X X  X X 

Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents X  X X X  X   

Clean doors including frame & hardware (Note 4)   X X X  X   

Damp-wipe baseboards, window sills & partition sills   X X X  X   

Clean & polish all visible surfaces of wood furniture & banister   X X X      

Clean & disinfect telephone handsets  X X   X  X   

Clean & disinfect tile walls X            

Clean both sides of TC plate glass windows       X X 

THRICE-ANNUALLY          

Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers Jan/Apr/Oct  Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct  Jan/Apr/Oct  

Shampoo carpets    Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct Jan/Apr/Oct  Jan/Apr/Oct   

Strip bathroom floors & Maint. bldg. employee lounge (breakroom) (Note 3) Apr/Aug/Dec    Apr/Aug/Dec    

 
Table Continued on Page 2 

 

 

EXHIBIT B



Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 
 

 

Appendix D 

Janitorial Task & Frequency Schedule 

Sorted By Frequency (Page 2 of 2) 
 

 All Olive Terminal Transit Center 

 
Bathrooms Offices 

Meeting 
Rooms 

Entries Stairs, 
Hallways  

Lounges & 
Kitchens 

Building 
Exterior 

Building 
Interior 

Building 
Exterior  

SEMI-ANNUALLY          

Clean inside of exterior wall windows    Jan & Jul Jan & Jul Jan & Jul      

Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces Feb & Aug  Feb & Aug Feb & Aug Feb & Aug  Feb & Aug   

Vacuum blinds & curtains  Mar & Sep 
Sepwa  

Mar & Sep Mar & Sep Mar & Sep     

Shampoo & extract dirt from all upholstered chairs   Jan & Jul  Jan & Jul  Jan & Jul  

Strip, seal, wax & polish passenger waiting area tile floor           Jun & Dec   

Strip & polish rear stairwell    Mar & Sep     

Clean & disinfect 4 kitchen refrigerators (upstairs, drivers’ room, conf. room & 
Maint.) 

 
   Note 10 

 
  

Buff tile in Admin Bldg (Note 13)    Mar/Sep     

ANNUALLY         

Deep clean grout in Admin Bldg (Note 13)    Dec     

 
Note 1: Transit Center to be vacuumed on Tuesdays, Thursdays & Saturdays. 
Note 2: Includes front & rear stair steps & elevator in Admin Building stairs; once per week, remove mats & runners before vacuuming/mopping. 
Note 3: Admin Building upstairs & lobby bathrooms only once per year (Dec); all other bathrooms 3 times per year (Apr, Aug & Dec); polish Maint. lounge 
Note 4: Polish metal handles, knobs, push plates & kick plates. 
Note 5: Includes Admin Bldg exterior trash receptacles/ash tray at front & rear entrances & front patio, but only on Tues & Fri. 
Note 6: Includes drinking fountains, paper towel dispensers, trash receptacles & stairway handrails. 
Note 7: Ensure additional stock of paper towels in 3 kitchen areas to avoid outages. 
Note 8: Only unobstructed surfaces; do not move papers or other items; does NOT include desktops & office equipment on them. Dust & straighten picture frames 
Note 9: Includes the metal housing & lids of the exterior receptacles at both the Administration Building and the Transit Center. 
Note 10: Clean & disinfect twice yearly & wet wipe weekly. 
Note 13 Includes front stairwell; top landing and reception area; first floor entry, hallway & restrooms..  
 

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 
 

Appendix E 

Janitorial Task & Frequency Schedule 

Sorted By Site (Page 1 of 2) 

OLIVE TERMINAL Daily Weekly Monthly 
Semi-

Annual 
Thrice-

Annually 
Annually 

Dispose of all debris & trash on floors (Note 11) X          

Empty wastebaskets and exterior trash receptacles (Notes 5, 11) X          

Reline wastebaskets and exterior trash receptacles (Notes 5, 12) X          

Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors (Notes 2, 11) X          

Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors (Notes 2,11) X          

Vacuum carpeted floors, mats & runners (Note 11) X          

Spot clean walls, doors & partitions including Admin Building stairwells  (Note 11) X          

Clean door glass & mirrors (Note 11) X          

Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel & anodized fixtures (Note 6) X          

Restock paper towels, toilet paper, seat covers & hand soap (Note 7) X          

Dust horizontal surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops (Notes 8, 11) X          

Spot clean partition glass up to 7' (Note 11) X          

Dust window & partition sills (Note 11) X          

Clean & disinfect toilets, urinals & basins X          

Spot clean carpets (Note 11) X      

Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops bathrooms all other        

Damp-wipe 4 kitchen refrigerators (upstairs, drivers’ room, confer. room & Maint.)   Note 10     

Clean & disinfect toilet stalls/partitions & nearby tile walls  X     

Clean & disinfect shower floors, walls, curtains & fixtures   X        

Clean partition glass & bulletin board glass up to 9'   X        

Vacuum upholstered furniture   X        

Clean, disinfect & polish complete elevator   X        

Clean & disinfect shower floors, walls, curtains & fixtures  X     

Clean interior wall & partition windows (glass) up to 9’  X     

Wipe down patio furniture  X     

Empty cigarette receptacles in designated smoking area in Maintenance yard  X     

Clean doors including frame & hardware (Note 4)   bathrooms all other      

Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents     X      

Clean & disinfect tile walls     X      

Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles (Note 9)     X      

Damp-wipe baseboards, window sills & partition sills     X      

Clean & disinfect telephone handsets     X      

Clean & polish all visible surfaces of wood furniture & banister     X      

Clean & disinfect 4 kitchen refrigerators (upstairs, drivers’ room, conf.. room & Maint.)     Note 10   

Clean inside of exterior wall windows       Jan & Jul    

Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces       Feb & Aug    

Vacuum blinds & curtains       Mar & Sep    

Shampoo & extract dirt from all upholstered chairs       Jan & Jul    

Strip & polish rear stairwell       Mar & Sep    

Buff tile in Admin Bldg (Note 13)    Mar & Sep   

Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers     Jan/Apr/Oct  

Shampoo carpets         Jan/Apr/Oct  

Strip bathroom floors & Maint. bldg. employee lounge (breakroom) (Note 3) 
 (Note 2) 

    Apr/Aug/Dec 
 

 

Deep clean grout in Admin Bldg (Note 13)      Dec 

Note 2: Includes front & rear stair steps & elevator in Admin Building stairs; once per week, remove mats & runners before vacuuming/mopping. 
Note 3: Admin Building upstairs & lobby bathrooms only once per year (Dec); all other bathrooms 3 times per year (Apr, Aug & Dec); polish Maint. lounge 
Note 4: Polish metal handles, knobs, push plates & kick plates. 
Note 5: Includes Admin Bldg exterior trash receptacles/ash tray at front & rear entrances and front patio, but only on Tues & Fri. 
Note 6: Includes drinking fountains, paper towel dispensers, trash receptacles & stairway handrails. 
Note 7: Ensure additional stock of paper towels in 3 kitchen areas to avoid outages. 
Note 8: Only unobstructed surfaces; do not move papers or other items; does NOT include desktops & office equipment on them. Dust & straighten picture frames 
Note 9: Includes the metal housing & lids of the exterior receptacles at both the Administration Building and the Transit Center. 
Note 10: Clean & disinfect twice yearly & wet wipe weekly. 
Note 11: Offices on Tuesdays & Fridays only; elsewhere daily or as described in other notes. 
Note 12: Reline wastebaskets daily in bathrooms & lounges/kitchens; only on Fridays elsewhere (including exterior trash receptacles). 
Note 13 Includes front stairwell; top landing and reception area; first floor entry, hallway & restrooms.      

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

 

Appendix E 

Janitorial Task & Frequency Schedule 

Sorted By Site (Page 2 of 2) 

 

TRANSIT CENTER Daily Weekly Monthly 
Semi-

Annual 
Trice- 

Annually 

Clean graffiti from bathroom walls, ceiling, stalls, fixtures, etc. as needed         

Vacuum carpeted floors, mats & runners Tues/Thurs/Sat     

Dispose of all debris & trash on floors X         

Empty wastebaskets X         

Reline wastebaskets X         

Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors (Note 2) X         

Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors (Note 2) X         

Spot clean walls, doors & partitions X         

Clean door glass & mirrors X         

Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel, chrome & anodized fixtures (Note 6) X         

Restock paper towels, toilet paper, seat covers & hand soap X         

Dust horizontal surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops (Note 8) X         

Spot clean partition glass & plate glass up to 7' X         

Dust window & partition sills X         

Sweep exterior passenger waiting area X         

Clean & disinfect toilets, urinals & basins X         

Spot clean carpets X     

Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops bathrooms all other       

Clean & disinfect toilet stalls/partitions & nearby tile walls  X    

Clean & disinfect shower floors, walls, curtains & fixtures    X    

Clean partition glass & bulletin board glass up to 9'   X       

Vacuum upholstered furniture   X       

Clean & disinfect passenger benches   X       

Clean doors including frame & hardware (Note 4)   bathrooms all other     

Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents     X     

Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles (Note 9)     X     

Damp-wipe baseboards window sills & partition sills     X     

Clean & disinfect telephone handsets     X     

Clean both sides of plate glass windows   X   

Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces       Feb & Aug   

Vacuum blinds & curtains       Mar & Sep   

Shampoo & extract dirt from all upholstered chairs    Jan & Jul  

Strip, seal, wax & polish passenger waiting area tile floor    Jun & Dec  

Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers        Jan/Apr/Oct  

Strip bathroom floors        Apr/Aug/Dec  

Shampoo carpets        Jan/Apr/Oct  

 
Note 2: Includes front & rear stair steps & elevator in Admin Building stairs; once per week, remove mats & runners before vacuuming/mopping. 
Note 4: Polish metal handles, knobs, push plates & kick plates. 
Note 6: Includes drinking fountains, paper towel dispensers, trash receptacles & stairway handrails. 
Note 8: Only unobstructed surfaces; do not move papers or other items; does NOT include desktops & office equipment on them. Dust & straighten picture frames 
Note 9: Includes the metal housing & lids of the exterior receptacles at both the Administration Building and the Transit Center 

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 
 

Appendix F 
Administration Building 

Floor Plan of 1st Floor 

 
 

Administration Building 
1st Floor Service Schedule 

No Shade: Mon-Fri (after 6 PM) 

Plum: Tues & Fri (after 6 PM) 

Green: Everyday (after 10 PM) 

Yellow: Twice Everyday 
 (between 11 AM & 1 PM 
  and after 10 PM) 

Blue: M-F (between 11 AM & 1 PM) 

Red: No Services 

All services completed by midnight except 
by 11 PM on Sundays

Janitorial Closet 

Limited Consumable 
Supplies Storage 

Fare Counting Room 

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 
 

Appendix G 
Administration Building 
Floor Plan of 2nd Floor 

 

 
 Administration Building 

2nd Floor Service Schedule 

No Shade: Mon-Fri (after 6 PM) 

Plum: Tues & Fri (after 6 PM) 

Red: No Services 

All services completed by midnight except 
by 11 PM on Sundays 

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

Appendix H 
Maintenance Building Floor Plan 

Desk 

Desk

Shipping & 
Receiving 

Parts 
Room

Electrical 
Room 

Shop Floor 
(no services) 

Maintenance Building 
Service Schedule 

Plum: Tues & Fri (after 6 PM) 

Green: Everyday (after 10 PM) 

Yellow: Twice Everyday 
 (between 11 AM & 1 PM 
  and after 10 PM) 

Red:  No Services 

All services completed by midnight 
except by 11 PM on Sundays 

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

Appendix I 
Transit Center Floor Plan 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Transit Center Interior 
Service Schedule 

Blue: Everyday (after 7 PM) 

Yellow: Three Times Everyday 

 Mon-Fri: 9:30 to 10:30 AM, 3 to 4 PM, & after 7 PM 
 Sat&Sun: 10 to 11 AM, 2 to 3 PM, & after 7 PM 
 

All services completed by 10 PM 

Janitorial Closet 

EXHIBIT B



Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

Appendix J 
Accountability Check–Off Sheets (Punch List) 

 
To provide better visibility of janitorial services to be accomplished each day and better accountability that they 
have been provided as specified in the Agreement, the Contractor shall use the attached Accountability Check-
Off Sheets, also known as the “punch list,” which are attached hereto.  The punch list is intended to reflect 
requirements cited in the Janitorial Task & Frequency Schedules in Appendices C, D and E. 
The following guidance pertains to the punch list: 

1. MTD will provide an initial set of the punch list for the Contractor to make copies for use by its 
personnel. 

2. When not in use, the punch list for the Olive Terminal will be located on the Receptionist’s desk on the 
second floor of the Administration Building and the punch list for the Transit Center (TC) will be 
located in the TC office area. 

3. Contractor personnel providing janitorial services (janitors) will use the forms to assist them in ensuring 
specified work is done each day and will check off work as it is accomplished or at the end of their 
shifts.  Work specified for performance on other than a daily or weekly basis will be checked-off on the 
weekly punch list as it is accomplished.  Weekly tasks will normally be performed the same day each 
week.  Although other arrangements may be made with the designated MTD employee, tasks scheduled 
other than daily or weekly will be scheduled and accomplished during the following week of the month 
they are required to be performed: 

a. Monthly – First week 
b. Thrice Annually – Second week 
c. Semi-Annually – Third week 
d. Annually – Fourth week 

4. At the end of each day work is performed the checked-off punch lists will be returned to the locations 
cited in “2” above. 

5. On a day each week to be specified by MTD the Contractor’s supervisor of the work shall by signature 
on the punch list certify that the checked-off work for the prior week has been completed satisfactorily.  
This may require the supervisor to be on-site during the week to verify the work.   

6. The certified punch list will be submitted to a designated MTD employee by the end of the next business 
day. 

7. Space is provided on the punch list for notes by both the janitors and supervisors.  Notes may include 
comments and questions and additional pages may be added if needed.  Comments or questions that 
should be addressed sooner than the following week when the certified punch list will be reviewed by 
MTD should be provided by the Contractor’s supervisor to the designated MTD employee by email, 
written memo or phone. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

OLIVE Janitorial Service Accountability Check-Off Sheet (Punch List) [Page 1 of 4] 
  DAILY   

   OLIVE TERMINAL BATHROOMS S M T W T F S 
1 Clean graffiti from bathroom walls, ceiling, stalls, fixtures, etc. (as needed)               
2 Dispose of all debris & trash on floors               
3 Empty wastebaskets               
4 Reline wastebaskets               
5 Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors               
6 Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors               
7 Clean door glass & mirrors               
8 Spot clean walls, doors & partitions                
9 Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel & anodized fixtures               

10 Clean & disinfect toilets, urinals & basins               
11 Restock paper towels, toilet paper, seat covers & hand soap               
12 Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               
  OLIVE TERMINAL OFFICES     T     F   

13 Dispose of all debris & trash on floors               
14 Empty wastebaskets               
15 Reline wastebaskets (FRIDAY ONLY)               
16 Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors               
17 Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors               
18 Vacuum carpeted floors, mats & runners               
19 Clean door glass               
20 Dust horizontal surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               
21 Spot clean walls, doors & partitions including partition glass                
22 Dust window & partition sills               
23 Spot clean carpets               
24 

Empty trash receptacles on front patio, outside front lobby & outside rear 
entry               

  OLIVE TERMINAL MEETING ROOMS S M T W T F S 
25 Dispose of all debris & trash on floors               
26 Empty wastebaskets               
27 Reline wastebaskets (FRIDAY ONLY)               
28 Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors               
29 Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors               
30 Vacuum carpeted floors, mats & runners               
31 Clean door glass               
32 Dust horizontal surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               
33 Spot clean walls, doors & partitions               
34 Dust window & partition sills               
35 Spot clean carpets               
  OLIVE TERMINAL ENTRIES, STAIRS, HALLWAYS S M T W T F S 

36 Dispose of all debris & trash on floors               
37 Empty wastebaskets               
38 Reline wastebaskets (FRIDAY ONLY)               
39 Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors               
40 Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors               
41 Vacuum carpeted floors, mats & runners               
42 Clean door glass                
43 Dust horizontal surfaces of furniture               
44 Spot clean walls & doors               
45 Clean front & rear door entry glass        

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

46 Dust window sills               
47 Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel & anodized fixtures               
48 Spot clean carpets               
  OLIVE TERMINAL LOUNGES & KITCHENS S M T W T F S 

49 Dispose of all debris & trash on floors               
50 Empty wastebaskets               
51 Reline wastebaskets                
52 Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors               
53 Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors               
54 Vacuum carpeted floors, mats & runners               
55 Dust horizontal surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               
56 Spot clean walls & doors               
57 Spot clean partition glass in drivers lounge        
58 Dust window sills               
59 Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel & anodized fixtures               
60 Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               
61 Spot clean carpets               
62 Restock paper towels & hand soap        
  WEEKLY                 
  OLIVE TERMINAL BATHROOMS               

63 Clean & disinfect toilet stalls/partitions & nearby wall tiles               
64 Clean & disinfect shower floors, walls, curtains & fixtures               
65 Clean doors including frame & hardware               
  OLIVE TERMINAL MEETING ROOMS               

66 Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               
67 Clean partition                
68 Vacuum upholstered furniture               
69 Clean interior wall               
  OLIVE TERMINAL ENTRIES, STAIRS, HALLWAYS               

70 Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture               
71 Clean bulletin board glass up to 9'               
72 Vacuum upholstered furniture               
73 Clean, disinfect & polish complete elevator               
74 Clean interior wall               
  OLIVE TERMINAL LOUNGES & KITCHENS               

75 Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               
76 Clean bulletin board                
77 Vacuum upholstered furniture               
78 Clean interior wall                
79 

Wet wipe 4 refrigerators (upstairs, drivers' room, conf. room & 
Maintenance)               

  MONTHLY               
  OLIVE TERMINAL BATHROOMS               

80 Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles               
81 Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents               
82 Clean & disinfect tile walls               

 OLIVE TERMINAL OFFICES        
83 Clean partition glass        
84 Clean & disinfect telephone handsets        
  OLIVE TERMINAL MEETING ROOMS               

85 Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles               
86 Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents               

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

87 Clean doors including frame & hardware               
88 Damp-wipe baseboards, window sills & partition sills               
89 Clean & polish all visible surfaces of wood furniture               
90 Clean & disinfect telephone handsets               

 OLIVE TERMINAL ENTRIES, STAIRS, HALLWAYS               
91 Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles               
92 Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents               
93 Clean doors including frame & hardware               
94 Damp-wipe baseboards & window sills               
95 Clean & polish all visible surfaces of wood furniture & banister               
 OLIVE TERMINAL LOUNGES & KITCHENS               

96 Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles               
97 Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents               
98 Clean doors including frame & hardware               
99 Damp-wipe baseboards & window sills                

100 Clean & polish all visible surfaces of wood furniture & banister               
101 Clean & disinfect telephone handsets               
102 Clean partition glass in drivers lounge        

  THRICE ANNUALLY               
  OLIVE TERMINAL BATHROOMS Jan Apr Oct         

103 Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers               
   Apr Aug Dec         

104 Strip bathroom floors               
  OLIVE TERMINAL MEETING ROOMS Jan Apr Oct         

105 Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers             
106 Shampoo Carpets               

 OLIVE TERMINAL ENTRIES, STAIRS, HALLWAYS Jan Apr Oct         
107 Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers             
108 Shampoo Carpets               

  OLIVE TERMINAL LOUNGES & KITCHENS Jan Apr Oct         
109 Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers             
110 Shampoo Carpets               

    Apr Aug Dec         
111 Strip & polish floors including Maint. Bldg. employee lounge (breakroom)             

  SEMI-ANNUALLY               
  OLIVE TERMINAL BATHROOMS Feb Aug           

112 Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces               
113 Buff tile               

 OLIVE TERMINAL OFFICES Mar Sep      
114 Vacuum blinds        

  OLIVE TERMINAL MEETING ROOMS Jan Jul           
115 Clean inside of exterior wall windows               
116 Shampoo & extract dirt from all upholstered chairs               

    Feb Aug           
117 Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces               

  Mar Sep      
118 Vacuum blinds & curtains        

  OLIVE TERMINAL ENTRIES, STAIRS, HALLWAYS Jan Jul           
119 Clean inside of exterior wall windows               

    Feb Aug           
120 Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces               

         

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

         
121 Strip & polish rear stairwell               
122 

Buff tile at front stairwell, top landing & reception area, first floor entry & 
hallway               

  OLIVE TERMINAL LOUNGES & KITCHENS Jan Jul           
123 Clean inside of exterior wall windows               
124 Shampoo & extract dirt from all upholstered chairs               
125 

Clean & disinfect 4 kitchen refrigerators (upstairs, drivers' room, conf. room 
& Maintenance)               

    Feb Aug           
126 Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces               

    Mar Sep           
127 Vacuum blinds & curtains               

  ANNUALLY               
  OLIVE TERMINAL  Jun             

128 
Deep clean grout at front stairwell, top landing & reception area, first floor 
entry & hallway               

   Dec             
129 Strip Admin Bldg upstairs & lobby bathrooms               

Notes - Please list the punch list item number you are referring to.  Attach more pages if needed.  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
  
  

Week Ending ________________   Supervisor Signature ____________________________________   Date __________ 

EXHIBIT B



Santa Barbara MTD   Janitorial Services SOW 

 
TC Janitorial Service Accountability Check-Off Sheet (Punch List) [Page 1 of 2] 

  DAILY                 
  TRANSIT CENTER BATHROOMS S M T W T F S 

1 Clean graffiti from bathroom walls, ceiling, stalls, fixtures, etc. (as needed)               
2 Dispose of all debris & trash on floors               
3 Empty wastebaskets               
4 Reline wastebaskets               
5 Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors               
6 Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors               
7 Clean glass & mirrors               
8 Spot clean walls, doors & partitions               
9 Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel & anodized fixtures               

10 Clean & disinfect toilets, urinals & basins               
11 Restock paper towels, toilet paper, seat covers & hand soap               
12 Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               

  TRANSIT CENTER BUILDING INTERIOR S M T W T F S 
13 Dispose of all debris & trash on floors               
14 empty wastebaskets               
15 Reline wastebaskets               
16 Dust-mop or vacuum non-carpeted floors               
17 Damp-mop, disinfect & deodorize non-carpeted floors               
18 Vacuum carpeted floors, mats & runners               
19 Clean door glass               
20 Dust horizontal surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               
21 Spot clean walls, doors & partitions                
22 Spot clean TC plate glass up to 7'               
23 Dust window & partition sills               
24 Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel & anodized fixtures               
25 Spot clean carpets               

  TRANSIT CENTER BUILDING EXTERIOR S M T W T F S 
26 Dispose of all debris & trash on floors               
27 Empty wastebaskets               
28 Reline wastebaskets               
29 Clean door glass               
30 Spot clean TC plate glass up to 7'               
31 Clean, disinfect & polish stainless steel & anodized fixtures               
32 Sweep exterior passenger waiting area               

  WEEKLY                 
  TRANSIT CENTER BATHROOMS               

33 Clean & disinfect toilet stalls/partitions & nearby wall tiles               
34 Clean doors including frame & hardware               

  TRANSIT CENTER BUILDING INTERIOR               
35 Damp-wipe all visible surfaces of furniture, cabinets & countertops               
36 Clean partition & bulletin board glass up to 9'               
37 Vacuum upholstered furniture               
38 Clean & disinfect passenger benches               

  TRANSIT CENTER BUILDING EXTERIOR               
39 Clean & disinfect passenger benches               

         
         

EXHIBIT B



 

Santa Barbara MTD  Janitorial Services SOW 

 MONTHLY               
  TRANSIT CENTER BATHROOMS               

40 Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles               
41 Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents               
42 Clean & disinfect tile walls               

  TRANSIT CENTER BUILDING INTERIOR               
43 Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles               
44 Dust ceilings, non-tile walls & vents               
45 Clean doors including frame & hardware               
46 Damp-wipe baseboards, window sills & partition sills               
47 Clean & disinfect telephone handsets               
48 Clean plate glass windows               

  TRANSIT CENTER BUILDING EXTERIOR               
49 Clean & disinfect trash & recycling housing & receptacles               
50 Clean plate glass windows               

  THRICE ANNUALLY               
  TRANSIT CENTER BATHROOMS Jan Apr Oct         

51 Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers               
    Apr Aug Dec         

52 Strip bathroom floors               
  TRANSIT CENTER BUILDING INTERIOR Jan Apr Oct         

53 Clean & disinfect vents, registers, grills & louvers               
54 Shampoo Carpets               

  SEMI-ANNUALLY               
  TRANSIT CENTER BATHROOMS Feb Aug           

55 Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces               
  TRANSIT CENTER BUILDING INTERIOR Feb Aug           

56 Clean non-ceiling light fixtures & sconces               
  Jan Jul           

57 Shampoo & extract dirt from all upholstered chairs               
  Jun Dec           

58 Strip, seal, wax & polish passenger waiting area tile floor               
Notes - Please list the punch list item number you are referring to.  Attach more pages if needed. 

  
  
  
 
  
 
 
  
  
  

Week Ending _______________   Supervisor Signature ____________________________________   Date __________  

EXHIBIT B





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



8/19/2016  Page 1 of 1 

 

  
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 23, 2016   AGENDA ITEM #: 8 

TYPE:   INFORMATIONAL  

PREPARED BY: DAVE HARBOUR        
                           Signature 

REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER       
                       GM Signature 

SUBJECT:     VEHICLE FLEET - FUEL AND PROPULSION SYSTEMS  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive a presentation on vehicle fleet - fuel and propulsion system considerations 
for future vehicle replacements. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: August 23, 2016 AGENDA ITEM #: 9 

TYPE: ACTION 

PREPARED BY: BRAD DAVIS   
  Signature 

REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER   
  Signature 

SUBJECT: Authorization to lease 6 BYD 30’ Electric Vehicles 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends that the Board: 

 Authorize the General Manager to enter into an agreement with BYD Motors to lease six 
thirty-foot battery-electric “shuttle configuration” buses contingent upon approval of the 
terms and conditions of the lease by MTD legal counsel; and, 

 Revise the fiscal year 2016-2017 budget to accommodate lease payments of up to 
$138,000. 

DISCUSSION: 

Background 
Last June 28, the Board authorized the General Manager to enter into a contract with BYD to 
purchase eight electric buses of the same configuration. This is the first phase in the 
replacement of the 14 Ebus electric shuttles that are 14 to 16 years of age. The board report 
for the agenda item included comprehensive information on the purchase including the basis 
for the need, the choice of vehicle, the nature of the purchasing process, a price analysis, and 
the intention to lease the six additional EV’s to complete the fleet replacement. That previous 
board report is included as an attachment to this report. 
 
Lease Agreement 
The key terms and conditions of the lease are as follows: 

 The lease payments would be based on a 12-year term with an interest rate of 6% 
resulting in monthly payments of $3,536 per vehicle (this amount may increase by up to 
8% if it is determined to be subject to sales tax, which is being researched). 

 MTD has the right to purchase any number of the six EV’s at any time during the lease 
period for a price of $409,905 including sales tax. The full amount of the lease 
payments, including interest, would be applied towards the purchase price. Note that 
the price takes into account a $10,000 discount eligible through the end of August. 

 Similarly, MTD has the right to terminate the lease of any vehicle at any time with no 
penalty if it were determined that there is no longer a need for the electric buses. 



 

Budget & Funding 
The approved budget for fiscal year 2016-17 does not include the cost of the lease payments. 
The aggregate payments in this fiscal year would be between $84,000 and $138,000 
depending upon the timing of delivery and applicability of sales tax. Staff is seeking budget 
authority from the Board for lease payments of up to $138,000 for FY 16-17. The terms of the 
lease meet accounting standards required to consider it a capital lease. As such, the portion of 
each payment representing principle would be considered a capital cost and the remaining 
interest portion would be an operating expense. 
 
Capital Purchase 
The City of Santa Barbara Master Agreement provides for the subsidies that support the 
Downtown-Waterfront Shuttle route. The quantity of leased vehicles that MTD ultimately would 
purchase is contingent upon any revisions to the terms of this agreement which expires in 
June, 2017. At this time, the outright purchase of the six vehicles would deplete MTD capital 
reserves to a level below what is considered fiscally prudent. MTD would continue to lease the 
requisite number of buses until funding can be secured and Board authorization is provided. 
 
Attachment: Authorization to Purchase Eight (8) BYD 30’ Electric Vehicles MTD Board of 

Directors Report dated June 28, 2016 



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: June 28, 2016 AGENDA ITEM #: 8 

TYPE: ACTION 

PREPARED BY: BRAD DAVIS   
  Signature 

 DAVE HARBOUR     

  Signature 

 

REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER   
  Signature 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE 8 BYD 30’ ELECTRIC VEHICLES 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to: 

 Purchase eight (8) BYD Motors, Inc., model K7M battery-electric low-floor thirty-
foot “shuttle configuration” transit buses; 

 Use options from Washington State Department of Enterprise Services (DES) 
master contract #09214 with BYD for the purchase; 

 Issue a purchase order subject to the terms of the DES contract to BYD in the 
amount of $3,279,240.33 for the eight electric vehicles. 

DISCUSSION: 

Project Need 
As reported and discussed in past committee and board meetings, staff has 
unsuccessfully sought replacement of its aging battery-electric shuttle fleet with vehicles 
of similar size and style in addition to desired chassis improvements. With the recent 
retirement of the six remaining 1992 Specialty Vehicle shuttles, MTD is now operating 
14 Ebus shuttles built between 2000 and 2002. The Ebus shuttles, at 14+ years of age 
and no longer in production, are becoming increasingly costly to maintain in terms of 
labor and parts. Many major components are no longer manufactured and finding either 
used replacements or qualified vendors to repair them is increasingly challenging. As 
there still remains no known electric buses meeting MTD’s desired criteria in the 22-foot 
to 25-foot range, staff is recommending replacement of the fleet with 30-foot battery-
electric shuttles. 
 



 

Another important criterion is to obtain the vehicles from an established manufacturer 
that provides full design, support, parts, and warranty services similar to that of other 
bus builders such as Gillig and Nova.  
 
Make & Model Decision 

MTD staff has been thorough in researching vehicles that could adequately replace and 
update what the battery-electric shuttles have brought to the service they have 
provided. In the past five years, the requirements outlined in California AB32 have 
driven the challenge for manufacturers to develop and produce “zero-emissions” 
technology worthy of meeting the roles and duty-cycles of the transit industry.  
 
Following numerous failed attempts to find a vendor that could build a battery-electric 
shuttle, MTD staff looked to the new battery-electric vehicle technology that has been 
evaluated and considered by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) and transit 
industry professionals. In its research, MTD has considered several different battery-
electric vehicle manufacturers, with the aim to meet certain criteria, including: achieving 
the current trolley look and feel, charging technology, viable parts supply-chain, 
comprehensive training and technical support, industry standardization and familiarity, 
extended range, and warranty coverage of costly and crucial systems.  
 
MTD chose to field-test the BYD 30-foot battery-electric K7 bus, to see if it could be a 
possible replacement platform for its aging battery-electric shuttle/trolley fleet. Field 
testing was positive, with the test bus traveling 120-150 miles per full charge. BYD also 
warranties their battery for 12 years, with no-cost repair or replacement if the battery 
falls below 70% capacity. 
 
The BYD K7 platform has the capability to fully charge within 2-3 hours, and does not 
require opportunity chargers to be stationed throughout the system. Each K7 bus 
purchased will include a stationary charger, unlike the opportunity charging systems that 
are at an additional cost, need extra planning and municipality coordination, have to be 
serviced in the field, and may become a “weak-link” to operations when inoperable. 
MTD’s current electrical infrastructure allows for up to thirty chargers. 
 
BYD has made the commitment to MTD to use its K7 platform to purpose-build an 
open-air shuttle/trolley to replace the current battery-electric shuttles and to meet MTD’s 
current service needs. Some of the construction details included larger window 
openings, removable window panels, inboard facing bench seating, ability to re-install 
the entry doors, air conditioning, new GFI FastFare fare boxes, AIM system and video 
camera system. In addition, BYD has committed to providing training and engineering 
support. 
 
Vehicle Quantity & Leasing 

Staff recommends limiting the purchase of EV replacements to eight at this time. This 
decision is based upon having adequate capital funds for other current and future 
projects as well as to maintain a capital reserve for unanticipated needs. Another 
reason is uncertainty surrounding the quantity of shuttles required in the future. 



 

Nonetheless, as indicated above, there is a strong need for replacement of all 14 
shuttles now. Thus, staff is working with BYD on a leasing arrangement for the 
remaining six electric buses. While not part of the recommendation of this report, staff is 
seeking a capital lease with the following attributes: the vehicles could be returned if 
determined they are not needed; or the electric shuttles could be purchased outright if 
there is a long-term need for them and the funding is available. 
 
Budget & Funding 
The recently approved capital budget for fiscal year 2016-17 includes $4 million for the 
purchase of eight replacement shuttles. The capital funding would be provided from 
TDA State Transit Assistance Funds. MTD budgeted $500,000 per vehicle based on the 
$450,000 contract list price before sales tax. Several available BYD options were added 
in as well which bring the full cost, including sales tax, to $514,655 per vehicle.  
 
The prices quoted are before available California rebates. The California Air Resources 
Board (ARB), in partnership with CALSTART, launched the California Heavy Duty 
Voucher Incentive Project (HVIP) in 2009. The HVIP rebate per vehicle is $104,750 for 
a net cost per bus of $409,905. Thus, the total rebate amount is $838,000 and accounts 
for the $3.28 million cost rather than the budgeted amount of $4 million. 
 
Cooperative Purchasing Method 
At its meeting of May 17, 2016, the Board authorized the General Manager to request 
14 options for the BYD electric buses from DES. The request was made and was 
approved by the State of Washington on May 26, 2016. This cooperative purchasing 
method, commonly referred to as “piggybacking,” allows MTD to use a competitive 
solicitation process already carried out by another public agency. The method 
significantly reduces the procurement time and resources in acquiring the needed 
shuttle replacements in addition to obtaining the advantage of volume pricing. 
 
Federal Funding Considerations 

Although the eight electric buses recommended for purchase in this report will be 
funded from STA sales tax monies, if the other six vehicles are leased and ultimately 
purchased, MTD would most likely attempt to make use of federal funds. To this end, 
DES has assured MTD that their solicitation was carried out under federal guidelines. 
Staff is also seeking advisement from FTA Region IX that, one, the use of the DES 
piggyback in particular by MTD would be allowable; and, two, that the leasing 
arrangement for the vehicles is eligible for payoff using federal funds. MTD is confident 
on both accounts because the Fast Act specifically encourages both the use of 
cooperative purchasing and capital leasing. Additionally, MTD has used federal funds to 
pay off a capital bus lease in the past. 
 
Price Analysis 
In 2014, Washington State DES launched an RFP to establish a statewide master 
contract for Heavy-duty Transit Vehicles. In order to meet varying operational demands. 
The RFP requested bids for several different types of propulsion systems, with 



 

numerous body length requests, including 30 ft., 35 ft., 40 ft., 45 ft., & 60 ft. Two bids for 
30 ft. battery-electric buses were received, one from BYD Motors Inc. and one from 
GreenPower Motor Company Inc. The DES bid evaluation process included pricing, 
options, and non-cost response categories of review. The non-cost response category 
presented factors that focused on overall product best value. The final bid evaluation 
and scoring was represented as follows: 
 

Vendor  BYD  Green Power 

Bus Size  Price  Points
Non Cost 
Points  Price  Points  Non Cost Points 

30 ft.   $           450,000.00   130  122.57   $     606,838.00  118.23  97.29 

Total  252.57 215.52

 

The evaluation performed by DES determined that the BYD 30 ft. battery-electric bus 
was not only the best priced vehicle option, but also proved to be the best overall 
vehicle value within the category. Based upon the comprehensive RFP evaluation 
results provided by the Washington State DES, I find that the $450,000 base price of 
the BYD 30 ft. battery electric bus to be fair and reasonable.  

   



To:   MTD Board of Directors  

From:   Jerry Estrada, General Manager  

Date:   August 23, 2016 

Subject:  General Manager’s Report 

 
Operations & Maintenance 

MTD’s annual CHP audit is scheduled for the week of August 22nd.  The Operations 
Department, in preparation for this annual visit, internally audits the affected programs which 
include Pull Notices, Drug and Alcohol testing, employee license, Verification of Transit Training 
certification and current Medical cards.  Strict adherence regarding documentation of the State 
and Federal Hours-of-Service mandates and regulations (i.e. other employment, such as 
moonlighting, and the 70/8 rule – no more than 70 compensated hours in 8 days) is also being 
internally audited and prepared for examination by the CHP Inspector.   

“Old Spanish Days” came, and went without incident, at least pertaining to MTD.  The two 
parades that impact our service: El Desfile Historico and El Desfile de los Ninos, did create 
closures and detours, which Operations had planned for, well in advance.  Minor adjustments 
were necessary from the plans implemented, due to heavy, heavy traffic, delayed openings of 
closed streets, and large crowds.   

Our Fall 2016 Bid will commence in conjunction with the new service changes next week on 
August 22nd.   Additional Staff and Supervision will be present throughout our service area, with 
particular attention directed towards the Goleta area, with the implementation of the line 
changes, additions and eliminations. 

The BYD project is moving forward, with current focus on details that hinge upon achieving the 
“Trolley” look. Details of the build specs continue to be discussed, including removable windows 
that maximize the window openings, the front cap visor, mounts for holiday displays, etc… A call 
and email have been submitted to Justin Milikan (Ricon) to obtain some status on the window 
design. 

Received BYD charging infrastructure upgrade and generator upgrade proposal from John 
Maloney. The proposal includes a site assessment that will consider possible charging 
opportunities for 40” and 45” electric buses. 

The expired and excess interior advertisements have been removed from the entire fleet. 
Current advertisements and information signs for the August service changes have been 
installed. 

Cummins related issues continue to plague the 2013 Gillig fleet. Several engine codes related 
to the emissions after treatment have become common. Cummins has been frequently called to 
assist with troubleshooting. The codes and issues that we are experiencing appear to be a more 
common issue throughout the industry. Other Cummins users will be contacted to discuss the 
issues and to see what might be an action-plan moving forward.  



Planning & Administration 

The inbound stop at Cliff/Meigs that serves Lines 4, 5 and 15x will be closed on August 22nd due 
to the City of Santa Barbara receiving a complaint about accessibility.  Funding the 
modifications for accessibility would be cost prohibitive given the multiple obstacles within the 
area particularly with relocating utility boxes.  A notice was posted to inform Line 4 and Line 15x 
passengers to use the Meigs/Dolores stop (approx. 600 ft. away) and for Line 5 passengers to 
use the Cliff/Meigs west stop (approx. 450 ft.).  The City is proposing to install a concrete pad(s) 
in the dirt parkway at Meigs/Dolores for boarding particularly with the higher anticipated use.   

The Line 14 stop at Olive Mill/Coast Village Road will be closed for approximately fifteen months 
beginning August 15 due to a private development project on that corner.   

The Fall changes begin on August 22 that affect Lines 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 20, 23 and 25.  The new 
Line 28 funded by UCSB will also debut.  Staff will report on the initial results after a few months 
of implementation.  Passenger information was posted at bus stops, in buses, on the website, 
social media and other means in addition to the updated Schedule Guide. Staff has been tabling 
at primary Storke/Hollister bus stops the week before and the week of when the Fall changes 
begin to answer questions. Staff also provided additional information of the changes to drivers 
by presenting them at VTT and on a monitor in the driver room, in addition to the standard 
Route Book and DDR drivers receive.  

Planning and Operations staff met with SBCAG staff to hear a presentation on the construction 
phasing of the Linden Ave/Casitas Pass Road overpass replacement project in Carpinteria.  
Construction is proposed to begin in September and end in 2020.  The information will be useful 
for staff to understand and plan for potential delays to the Lines 20, 21x and Seaside Shuttle 
throughout the duration of the project.      

MTD received a letter from SBCAG on August 12th regarding the Traffic Management Program 
for the Linden Ave/Casitas Pass Road overpass replacement project.  One component of the 
TMP is to create and operate both local and regional transit services that will reduce traffic in 
and around the project area as well as provide service to affected residential areas.  SBCAG is 
interested in partnering with MTD to achieve these TMP goals developed by SBCAG which are 
outlined in the letter.  A maximum of $325,000 in project funding is available to meet these 
goals.  SBCAG is requesting response of willingness by MTD to operate the services by 
September 2nd.    

Administration 

At the suggestion of the Montecito Community Foundation (MCF), staff submitted an application 
to the MCF for a project to improve the aesthetics of bus stops in Montecito. The first project 
would install green sleeves and sign holders on the poles at all of the bus stops in the area, and 
potentially one “demonstration” stop would get a new green bench and trash can. Possible 
future projects could include additional new benches at a few of the busiest stops. 

Staff submitted the semi-annual Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and 
Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) reports to Caltrans, as required.  Staff also 



submitted MTD's monthly ridership report for July to FTA’s National Transit Database, as 
required. 

 

HR is pleased to announce the hire of new bus driver Christina Medina.  Ms. Medina started 
training last week and she is very excited to join the MTD team.  Recruiting efforts continue in 
order to fill open driver positions and HR is using social media as a source for posting openings 
by way of MTD's Facebook page.   Recruiting for the Marketing and Community Relations 
Manager started two weeks ago and we have received strong applicant response.   

Customer Service is busy with the start of the school year, as well as the service changes to the 
bus system.  We have gotten booster schedules out to all of the area junior high and high 
schools, as well as attending “Back to School” events to sell passes and inform students and 
parents of the correct bus to take, based on the school and home location. 

Traditionally, at this time of year, MTD’s Outreach Department focuses on reaching the senior 
demographic.  We have confirmed events at Earl Warren and also the Carpinteria Senior Health 
Fair.  Additionally, we have bus riding presentations planned for Villa Caridad (the senior 
complex run by St. Vincent’s) and Presidio Springs (run by the Housing Authority).  Because we 
just installed a new bus shelter at De la Guerra and Laguna, servicing the Presidio Springs 
complex, we are also planning a “ribbon cutting” on the same morning as the presentation. 

The large font bus schedules have been printed and are being distributed at the Braille Institute, 
libraries, community centers, and the Transit Center. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 








	20160823 Board Agenda
	20160809 Minutes
	Cover Sheet 20160823
	apsbmtd 20160823
	ARsbmtd 20160823
	20160823 Staff Report - Janitorial Services IFB - FINAL Contract Award Recommendation
	20160823 Attachment - Janitorial Services - Final Contract for JaniCare
	Janitorial Services - Final Master Agreement (20160817)
	This Page Intentionally Left Blank (1)
	Janitorial Services Exhibit A - Final FTA Contract Provisions (20160817)
	Janitorial Services Exhibit B - Final Statement of Work with Appendices (20160818)
	Janitorial Services - Final Statement of Work Text (20160818)
	Statement of Work Apendices A-B
	Statement of Work Appendices C-D-E - Changes Applied - Final Version
	Statement of Work Appendices F-I
	Statement of Work Appendix J - Changes Applied - Final

	Janitorial Services Exhibit C- Final Bid (20160818)

	20160823 Staff Report - Fleet Fuel and Propulsion
	RECOMMENDATION:

	20160823 Staff Report - BYD Bus Lease Authority Recommendation
	Lease Agreement

	20160823 Attachment - BYD Bus Award Recommendation
	Make & Model Decision
	Vehicle Quantity & Leasing
	Federal Funding Considerations

	20160823 GM Report
	20160809 SBCAG_Corres_ Linden-Casitas Program Fund



